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Coimbatore - 641018,
Tamil Nadu, India.
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E-mail : rpr.plant@adorians.com

Ador International

DUBAI
South Zone 3, Warehouse, B2SR07, JAFZA, Dubai, UAE.

Tel : +9715 0538 5041 | E-mail : mustafa@adorians.com
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CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

We care for the well-being of all our stakeholders and we are ethical & responsible in our approach 
towards business...

•  A Commerce Graduate with distinction in Marketing & Advertising and Masters 
in commerce with specialization in Accounting; pursued MBA from Manchester 
Business School, UK and did courses at London School of Economics, UK.

•  Formerly associated with Langham Capital, London, DHL, Europe and various 
NGOs and currently involved with the education section in India.

•  Awarded an honorary Doctorate in 2019.
•  22 years hands on experience across reputed National and International firms.
•  Involved across various functions within Ador Group including incubating Ador 

Welding Academy, new business ideas and e-commerce initiatives at the group. 
Currently Chairman of the Group’s Holding Company, J B Advani & Co. Pvt. Ltd. and 
leading the CSR initiatives for the Group.

•  MBA, with specialization in Finance from Imperial College, UK.

•  B.Sc. in Business & Economics from Lehigh University, PA, USA.

•  Formerly associated with Alliance Capital Asset Management in New York.

•  Over 26 years of experience in Financial Management of Ador Welding Limited 
and Ador Group of Companies.

•  Former Chairman of Ador Fontech Ltd and Chairman of M/s. J B Advani & Co. 
Private Limited (parent company of Ador Group).

•  Currently, the Executive Chairman of Ador Welding Ltd. w.e.f. 19th November, 2019.

•  Member of Young Presidents’ Organisation (YPO) & Entrepreneurs Organisation (EO).

•  Pursued B.A. (Economics) from Oberlin College (Ohio, USA) and MBA from Indian 
School of Business (ISB, Hyderabad).

•  Prior experience in Marketing & Finance functions of MNCs in FMCG industry.

•  Involved across varied functions ranging from corporate marketing & exports to 
strategic planning & new business initiatives across Ador Group of Companies.

Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 
Executive Chairman 

(DIN: 00031985)

Mr. Aditya T. Malkani
Managing Director 

(DIN: 01585637)

BOARD OF DIREctORS

Mr. (Dr.) Deep A. Lalvani
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 01771000)
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•  Ravin Mirchandani is a business leader with significant international experience 
having directly lived and worked in 6 countries across Europe and Asia. His 
experience spans the cryogenic, defence, energy storage and traffic infrastructure 
industries. 

•  Ravin has a MBA in Business Administration from Queensland University of Technology 
(International Business), Brisbane, Australia and a Bachelor of Commerce 
(Accounting) degree from the University of Pune, India.

•  Presently, Ravin’s primary focus is “road”, i.e. equipment to charge electric vehicles 
and road safety technology such as speed enforcement and calming systems. 
During his spare time he enjoys golf and kayaking. He also has a private pilot’s 
license. Ravin speaks English, Hindi, Marathi and when it counts - some French and 
Indonesian.

•  Has worked both as an attorney in private practice and as an in-house counsel 
with MNCs, while working with O’Melveny & Myers LLP, UTStarcom Inc., and UnitedLex 
Corporation. 

•  Most recently was the CEO of Yumchek, a F&B data analytics Company. Currently, 
he is a Director at MaxMax Chambers of Conciliation, Mediation & Arbitration. 

•  Has significant experience in managing affairs of Companies in various capacities, 
from structuring and negotiating various types of transactions (trading, licensing, 
outsourcing, RFPs), conducting due diligence and executing M&As and to 
effectively managing outside counsel for dispute resolution; in addition to other 
routine corporate governance, data protection, regulatory and compliance work. 

•  Over the course of his career, he has lived and worked in the US and Asia and 
has advised clients across geographies from the US, UK, Latin America, EMEA, 
SEA, South Asia, China, Korea to Japan, including Credit Suisse, Lockheed Martin, 
Hilton Hotels, Mantas, SRI, AkzoNobel, Marriott International, Ogilvy & Mather, Apollo 
Global Management, Insight Partners, AtoS, British Telecom, Anglo-American, CSC, 
and Bristol-Myers-Squibb. 

•  Holds degrees in mathematics and law from Delhi University and Harvard Law 
School, USA. 

•  Graduated with a B.Sc. in Human Psychology from Aston University, Birmingham, 
UK.

•  Completed her MBA with concentration in Marketing from London Business 
School.

•  Has further qualifications in Business Analysis from the British Computing Society, 
Business Strategy from INSEAD, Marketing from Kellogg School of Management 
and Business Intelligence reporting from IBM.

•  Started her career as a Business Consultant at IBM in London, where she 
specialized in Big Data and Analytics. She then joined Ador Group in Mumbai as 
part of their founding team for 3D Future Technologies, where she specialized in 
IT & Marketing.

•  Post-MBA, Ms. Tanya returned to London as a Senior Technology Strategy 
Consultant at Accenture where she led innovation projects for both Accenture 
internally as well as for it’s external clients.

•  Appointed as a Director onto the Board of M/s. Ador Welding Limited w.e.f. 19th 
November, 2019.

Mr. Ravin A. Mirchandani
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 00175501)

Ms. Tanya H. Advani
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 08586636)

Mr. Piyush K. Gupta
Non-Executive & Independent Director

(DIN: 00963094)
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•  Rakesh has over 36 years of work experience.  
•  He commenced his career with HSBC, where he worked for 10 years in Corporate & 

Investment Banking, executing Debt, Equity and Structured Transactions with Large 
Indian and MNC Companies.

•  He then moved to the General Electric Group and worked with GE Capital and 
thereafter following an internal group transfer, as CEO for IGE India, where he was 
responsible for the initial launch of the NBC & CNBC Network in India. 

•  Subsequently, he spent another 3 years in the television broadcast industry before 
joining the Oberoi Group (EIH), as CEO of Mercury Travels.  

•  He then moved and worked in Hong Kong and India as Director in a leading 
Executive Search firm, before establishing Executive Mantra, with two other partners 
in the year 2014. 

•  He is a B. Com. (Hons) graduate from St. Xavier’s College, Kolkata and has a BBA & 
MBA degree from SIU, London.

•  Co-Founder of Kae Capital, an early stage Venture Capital Fund, where she is the 
Director of Finance & Legal.

•  Previously, the President of Indo Pacific Polyfibers Limited (IIPL), a Dempo Group 
Company where she was part of the Promoter Group. 

•  Earlier she has worked with HDFC Securities and JM Morgan Stanley primarily in the 
area of Equity Research. She has also served as the Commercial Executive of the 
Dempo Group.

•  An Active Angel Investor in fast growing start-ups like InMobi, Innovcare, Squadrun 
and Navya.

•  She has completed her M.Sc. (Econ) with specialization in Analysis Design 
Management of an Information System & B.Sc. (Econ) Accounting & Finance from 
the London School of Economics and B.A. (Econ) from St. Xavier’s College of Arts, 
Mumbai. 

•  Responsible for leading global omnichannel content marketing and for GSK.
•  He is into setting up AI & Gen AI capabilities and running global teams across 

geographies and capabilities including; strategy, creative, media data and 
technology.

•  Partnered Unilever, P&G, J&J, Kimberly Clark and Government accounts including 
Central Provident Fund (CPF), the Housing and Development Board (HDB) and 
Singapore Tourism Board, amongst others.

•  Has won multiple awards ranging from Cannes, Effiesand has been listed as 40 
under 40 in Campaign Asia’s 2017 list. Gaurav also sits on the board of two public 
listed companies in India.

Mr. Rakesh N. Sapru
Non-Executive & Independent Director

(DIN: 02332414)

Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani
Non-Executive & Independent Director 

(DIN: 06928792)

Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani
Non-Executive & Independent Director

(DIN: 01103973)
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•  BA (Hons.) Economics from St Stephen’s College, Delhi University; Post Graduate Diploma 
(Business Management) from XLRI, Jamshedpur.

•  Over 40 years of operating and / or advisory experience in FMCG, Television Networks, 
Newspapers, Sports Marketing and Technology Companies.

•  Has held operating responsibilities for India and International Markets (UK & Europe, USA, 
Africa, GCC, Asia, Australasia).

•  Has lived in and worked from postings in India, Nigeria, UK and Singapore. Currently lives in 
and operates from Singapore.

•  Worked with Unilever India sales & marketing; Afcott Nigeria; and Kanmoor Foods India, 
before transitioning to media & entertainment.

•  Worked in the media industry as Executive President of Zee TV (1992-95), CEO of Zee 
TV International (1996-97), Group CEO Indian Express Newspapers (1998-2000), CEO 
Internet Company of India (2000-01), CEO Nimbus Sport (2002-07) and CEO Nimbus 
Communications (2008-09).

•  Project assignments with Enfold Inc. USA, T2 Diamond Singapore over 2013-19.
•  Director at Nimbus Sport (2009-12); Advisory Board at Euromax (2007-14); Non-Executive 

Independent Director at Mercury Travels Ltd (2014-2018).
•  Member of Board of Governors of Spirit of Enterprise, Singapore 2017-19.
•  Served as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the Board of Thomas Cook India Ltd. 

(1999- 06) and Ador Welding Ltd. (2009- till date).

•  Mr. Navroze Shiamak Marshall is a British national of Indian origin and has been 
the Managing Director of Simmonds-Marshall Ltd., since January, 2003. 

•  Mr. Marshall has an experience of over 20 years to his credit. 
•  He has vast experience with multinationals in the United States of America. 
•  Mr. Marshall was educated at Cathedral & John Connon School, Mumbai, United 

World College (South East Asia), Singapore and holds Bachelors of Science 
degree in Chemical Engineering & Economics from Carnegie Mellon University in 
Pittsburgh, USA.

• Mr. Marshall also has a MBA in Management from IMD, Switzerland.

Mr. K. Digvijay Singh
Non-Executive & Independent Director 

(DIN: 00004607)

Mr. Navroze S. Marshall
Non-Executive & Independent Director 

(DIN: 00085754)
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(Rupees in lakhs)
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Sales & Other Income (net of excise duty)  89,690  78,343  66,696  45,459  53,464 
Manufacturing & Other Expenses  79,391  68,955  60,311  42,739  48,528 
Operating Profit / EBITDA  10,299  9,388  6,385  2,720  4,936 
Depreciation  1,342  1,161  1,090  1,110  1,068 
EBIT  8,957  8,227  5,295  1,610  3,868 
Interest 402 236 372 641 861
Profit before exceptional items and tax (PBT)  8,555  7,991  4,923  969  3,007 
Exceptional Items (Net)  -    (80)  898  (2,537)  -   
Profit / (loss) before tax (PBT)  8,555  7,911  5,821  (1,568)  3,007 
Taxation  2,236  1,982  1,319  (369)  445 
Profit / (loss) after Tax (PAT)  6,319  5,929  4,502  (1,199)  2,562 
Comprehensive Income/ (loss)  (52)  (68)  (61)  52  (147)
Total Comprehensive income / (loss)  6,267  5,861  4,441  (1,147)  2,415 
Dividend (incl. DDT)  2516#  2380*  1700*  -    1066# 

BALANCE SHEET - AS AT FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Net Fixed Assets (incl. CWIP and Investment in properties)  15,299  12,506  12,457  11,969  12,486 
Investments  2,325  2,028  1,988  1,178  635 
Current Assets  30,251  26,612  21,009  20,209  26,739 
Current Liabilities  14,901  12,023  10,396  13,265  18,032 
Net Current Assets  15,350  14,589  10,613  6,944  8,707 
Other Non-Current Assets  4,186  4,022  3,811  4,152  4,024 
Capital Employed  37,160  33,145  28,869  24,243  25,852 
Equity Share Capital  1,360  1,360  1,360  1,360  1,360 
Reserves & Surplus  34,878  30,991  26,832  22,383  23,530 
Net Worth  36,238  32,351  28,192  23,743  24,890 
Long term loan Funds  60  73  60  -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -    -   423
Long-term provisions  760 615 469 359 387
Other long term liabilities  102 106 148 141 152
Capital Employed  37,160  33,145  28,869  24,243  25,852 

RATIOS FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
EBITDA Margin (%) 11.65% 12.09% 9.65% 6.08% 9.39%
Net Margin (%) 7.15% 7.63% 6.81% (2.68%) 4.87%
Interest Cover (EBITDA / Gross Interest) 26 40 17 4 6
ROCE (EBIT / Capital Employed) (%) 24.10% 24.82% 18.34% 6.64% 14.96%
Current Ratio (times) 2.03 2.21 2.02 1.52 1.48
Debt Equity Ratio (times) 0.12 0.05 0.00 0.12 0.33
Dividend Per Share (DPS) (Rs.) 18.5* 17.50 12.50 0.00 6.50#
Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 46.46 43.60 33.10  (8.82) 18.84
Book Value per share (Rs.) 266.46 237.88 207.29 174.58 183.01

* Final Dividend

# Interim Dividend

FIVE YEAR FInAncIAl StAtIStIcS
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1. Distributors Meet:
  The Ador Distributors Meet 2023, 

was a resounding success, bringing 
together over 400 individuals, including 
employees, distributors of Ador Welding 
& Ador Fontech, and their families. The 
event served as a celebration of the 
powerful synergy that binds both the 
Companies together. Highlights of 
the meet included the Ador Awards 
Night, which recognized outstanding 

2.  Schweissen & Schneiden 
Trade Fair in Essen:

  Schweissen & Schneiden is the world’s 
premier trade fair for joining, cutting, 
and surfacing technology specialists, 
making it a pivotal event for companies 
at the forefront of welding innovation. 
Ador’s presence at this prestigious event 
underscores its commitment to pushing 
the boundaries of welding technology 
and fostering a sustainable future for 
the industry. 

EVEntS HElD DURInG tHE YEAR

achievements and showcased our collective strength as a cohesive team. It also featured interactive 
sessions, providing valuable insights from distributors and the Ador team, fostering knowledge exchange 
and clarity of perspective.

  Our participation in Schweissen & Schneiden 2023 
provided an exceptional platform for showcasing 
our latest breakthrough: the Rhino-E Electric Welder. 
This state-of-the-art technology, engineered with 
a focus on minimizing carbon emissions and noise 
levels, captured significant attention from attendees. 
Visitors commended our interactive displays, 
including immersive virtual reality experiences and 
live product demonstrations. Particularly, the Rhino-E 
Battery Welder emerged as a standout feature of 
the exhibition, attracting considerable interest for its 
pioneering attributes.
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OUR nEW PRODUct

RHINO - E
Ador’s latest innovation Rhino - E, represents a remarkable leap forward in welding technology, designed with a 
strong emphasis on reducing carbon emissions and noise levels. Notably, this marks the introduction of the first 
battery-powered electric welder in India.

The launch of Rhino - E, reflects Ador’s unwavering commitment to Innovation and Sustainability. We recognised 
the need to reduce the carbon footprint, in welding processes and responded by developing the first battery-
powered welder in India. We believe, Rhino - E will not only revolutionize the welding industry but also contribute 
significantly to reducing environmental impact. Ador is poised to lead this fast-growing market segment.

Rhino E’s rapid development, achieved within a record time of just four months, demonstrates Ador’s formidable 
capabilities. The product stands as a testament to the prowess of Ador’s Technical Development Centre, which 
comprises 38 highly skilled individuals and receives a substantial 5% of the Company’s profits dedicated to 
fostering innovation. This commitment to cutting-edge technology enables Ador to stay ahead of market 
demands and provide innovative solutions to its customers.
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cSR InItIAtIVES

1.  Refurbishment of Girls Washroom at Advani Oerlikon Higher Secondary School, Birgaon, Raipur: Ador Welding 
Limited constantly endeavours to add value and promote Education / Special Education on the societal front 
and to make a significant impact on their livelihood. We recently constructed the “Pink Toilet” for Girls, studying 
at Advani Oerlikon Higher Secondary School, which was established in the year 1981 at Raipur. This co-ed school 
has grown, to become the largest public school in Chhatisgarh. Ador continues to support the school, in varying 
capacities.

2.  Vanvasi Kalyan Ashram (VKA): Vanvasi Kalyan Ashram, provides a nurturing environment, where young girls 
not only pursue academic excellence, but also engage in a spectrum of extracurricular activities. Through the 
judicious use of funds and donations received from the community at large VKA offers holistic development 
opportunities including stitching / tailoring, cooking, computer training, mehendi training, basics of agricultural 
activities and much more, ensuring our girls emerge as confident and skilled individuals, ready to conquer the 
world.
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3.  Ajit Foundation: Ajit Foundation has taken a significant step towards digital education by providing smart boards 
to children through our Company’s CSR fund. By introducing children to the digital world, it hopes to create a 
more engaging and enjoyable learning environment. Its smart boards are being used to teach Language, Maths, 
Science and Skills, to create a better future for our children.

4.  U & I Trust: U&I is working hard to bring a positive change to the society and helping underprivileged, destitute, & 
mentally challenged individuals lead a better life.

 a.  Better Learning Tools: With resources like books and whiteboards for its classrooms, learning has become 
much more fun for our students. They now can understand English better and learn important skills more 
easily.

 b.  Fun Presentations: They were able to organize special events like recent “project day” for the students to 
show what they’ve learned in interactive projects through presentations. By actively participating in these 
activities, students not only gain confidence but also developed a deeper understanding and appreciation 
for the subject matter.

 c.  Personalized Progress Tracking: Its students now have their own report cards. These tools enable students to 
monitor their own progress and identify areas for improvement. This makes them feel responsible for their own 
learning, increasing their confidence in decision making.

   Our CSR support has given its students the confidence and skills they need to succeed academically, 
empowering them to break free from the cycle of poverty
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5.  Shiksha Foundation: It nurtures underprivileged girl child section of the society, helps needy children, work upon 
women empowerment for a strong nation building, get the right medical aid, outreach to outskirts and make 
education available for literacy & organize special need based programs.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ador Welding Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1.	 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and 
other explanatory information.

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

4.	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

5.	 We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer note 34 and note 60 to the accompanying financial statements for the material accounting policy on 
revenue recognition and details of revenue recognised during the year.

Revenue from sale of goods (hereinafter referred to as 
“Revenue”) is recognized when control of the products 
being sold is transferred to the customer and when 
there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations.

Our audit procedures, related to revenue recognition, 
included, but were not limited, to the following:

•	 Understood the process of revenue recognition and 
evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting 
policy adopted by management on revenue 
recognition in accordance with Ind AS 115;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company has three reportable business segments: 
i) Consumables ii) Equipment and automation; and iii) 
Flares and Process Equipment Division (FPED).

The timing of recognition of revenue in case of sale 
of consumables and equipment and automation 
is when control over the same is transferred to the 
customer. The performance obligations are fulfilled at 
the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer 
acceptance depending on terms of the agreement 
i.e., performance obligations are satisfied at a point in 
time. The performance obligations in case of FPED, are 
satisfied over the time.

Owing to the diverse terms of contracts with customers, 
in line with the requirements of the standards of 
auditing, revenue is determined to be an area 
involving significant risk and hence, requiring significant 
auditor attention. Further, the application of Ind AS 
115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘Ind 
AS 115’) requires management to make certain key 
judgements / estimates such as determining timing of 
revenue recognition and transaction price including 
impact of variable consideration as per the terms of 
the contracts with customers.

The management considers revenue as a key measure 
for evaluation of performance and thus timing of 
revenue recognition is relevant as there is a risk of 
revenue being recorded before control is transferred 
to the customers.

Considering significance of amount involved, varied 
terms of contracts with customers and above-
mentioned key judgements / estimates, revenue 
recognition is considered to be a key audit matter for 
the current year audit.

•	 Evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of Company’s controls (including the 
automated controls) around revenue recognition;

• Assessed the appropriateness of Company’s 
identification of performance obligations in its 
contracts with customers, its determination of 
transaction price including impact of variable 
consideration and allocation thereof to 
performance obligations in accordance with the 
accounting principles laid down in Ind AS 115;

• 	 Scrutinized sales ledgers to verify completeness of 
sales transactions;

• 	 Performed substantive testing by extracting samples 
of revenue transactions recorded during the year, 
including specific period before and after the year 
end, by verifying the underlying documents, which 
included shipping documents, lorry receipt, sales 
order, invoice and approved price list etc;

• 	 Selected a sample of contracts and performed 
a retrospective review of efforts incurred with 
estimated efforts to identify significant variations 
and verify whether those variations have been 
considered in estimating the remaining efforts to 
complete the contract;

•	 Inspected the samples of sales return and checked 
the appropriateness of sales return accounted in 
the books by verifying its approval from authorized 
person and goods inward note;

• 	 Performed analytical procedures on current year 
revenue based on overall revenue recognized, 
customer wise analysis, product wise analysis and 
where appropriate, conducting further enquiries 
and testing;

• 	 Obtained balance confirmations for samples of 
customers selected and reviewed the reconciling 
items, if any; and

• 	 Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy 
of the related disclosures included in financial 
statements in accordance with Ind AS 115.
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	 Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6.	 The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

7.	 The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The 
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

8.	 In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9.	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10.	Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

11.	As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; 
and

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

12.	We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

13.	We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

14.	From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15.	As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

16.	As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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17.	Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, 
to the extent applicable, that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 17(h)(vi) below 
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)};

c)	 The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the 
Act;

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)	 The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 
stated in, paragraph 17(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 17(h)(vi) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)];

g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company, as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024.

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

iv.	 a.	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed 
in note 59 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		 b.	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
note 59 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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		 c.	 Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management 
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.	 The interim dividend declared by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 is in 
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend. However, 
the said dividend is not paid on the date of this audit report. The final dividend paid by the Company 
during the year ended 31 March 2024 in respect of such dividend decleared for the previous year is 
in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

vi.	 As stated in note 69 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test 
checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing 
on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential 
impact of the exception given below

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception

Instances of accounting software for maintaining 
books of account for which the feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility was not operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software.

The audit trail (edit logs) was enabled 
however, not retained for the period 1 April 
2023 to 24 June 2023 at the database level 
for the accounting software to log any direct 
data changes, used for maintenance of all 
accounting records by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 24042423BKCMMW8717

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 April 2024
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Annexure A: Referred to in paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members 
of Ador Welding Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report 
that:

(i)	 (a)	 (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment property and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

		  (B) 	The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment, 
capital work-in-progress, investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the 
assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this 
programme, certain property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment property and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

(c) 	The title deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the Company 
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed 
in favour of the lessee), disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the 
Company.

(d) 	The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right-of-use assets or intangible 
assets during the year.

(e) 	No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made 
thereunder.

(ii)	 (a) 	The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, 
except inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of inventory lying with third 
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties.

	 (b) 	As disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working capital 
limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The quarterly returns/
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and 
such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective 
periods which were subject to audit/review.

(iii)	 The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) 
or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(iv)	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made and 
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.
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(v) 	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)	 The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 
of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	(a)	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute 
except for the following:

Name 
of the 
statute

Nature of dues Gross 
Amount 

(Rs. In 
lakhs)

Amount 
paid under 
Protest (Rs. 

In lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance of scientific 
research expenses

62.63 12.55 2013-14 CIT(A)

Addition in Income and 
Disallowance of entrance fees 
and subscriptions Restatement 
impact

89.88 - 2019-20 CIT(A)

Disallowance of Research 
& Development Expenses 
claimed.

4.66 - 2017-18 CIT(A)

Customs 
Act, 1962

Rejection of refund of excess 
duty paid

45.53 45.53 2016-17 Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

The 
Central 
Excise 
Act, 1944

Additional Liability arising due to 
difference in assessable value, 
disallowance of CENVAT credit 
(including penalty/interest, if any)

7.72 1.00 1998-99 Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

2.18 0.96 2006-07 Assistant 
Commissioner

13.42 - 2008-09 Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

13.40 0.50 2003-04 Commissioner Excise
899.00 898.16 April-2012 

to Mar-2017
Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal
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Name 
of the 
statute

Nature of dues Gross 
Amount 

(Rs. In 
lakhs)

Amount 
paid under 
Protest (Rs. 

In lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Central 
Sales tax 
Act and 
Local 
Sales Tax 
Acts of 
various 
statues

Additional Liability arising due to 
difference in assessable value, 
disallowance of CENVAT credit 
(including penalty/interest, if any)

18.07 9.21 1987-1988, 
1992-1993

High court

20.09 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-
Sales Tax

6.88 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-
Sales Tax

7.98 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-
Sales Tax

0.21 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-
Sales Tax

327.42 - 2009-10 Joint Commissioner 
( VAT)

156.03 - 2015-16 Joint Commissioner 
( VAT)

4.78 0.74 July’2017 to 
March’2019

Commissioner-
Appeal

8.66 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
Appeal

79.17 41.83 2016-17 Deputy 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

BIS Act, 
2016

Certain imported inventory 
which has been detained by 
the Bureau of Indian Standards 
(BIS).

3,643 - 2023-24 Bombay High Court

(viii) 	According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not 
been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the 
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company 
has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.

	 (c)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during the current 
year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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	 (d)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term 
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

	 (e)	  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(x) 	 (a) 	The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

	 (b) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) 	(a) 	To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by 
our audit.

	 (b) 	According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

	 (c) 	According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during 
the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into 
by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv)	(a) 	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an 
internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the 
provisions of section 138 of the Act.

	 (b) 	We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period 
under audit.

(xv)	According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) 	Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the 
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does 
not have any CIC.
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(xvii) 	The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(xviii) 	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)		 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in 
the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when 
they fall due.

(xx) 		 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent 
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as 
at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(xxi)		 The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under 
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 24042423BKCMMW8717

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 April 2024
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Annexure B: Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 

1.	 In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) as at and 
for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company as at that date. 

	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s 
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

	 Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial 
Statements 

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal 
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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	 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

6.	 A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

	 Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

	 Opinion

8.	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 24042423BKCMMW8717

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 April 2024
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Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Notes As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 10,902 10,738
(b) Right-of-use asset 3 706 484
(c) Capital work-in-progress 4 2,537 151
(d) Investment properties 5 1,085 1,045
(e) Intangible assets 6 69 47
(f) Intangible assets under development 7 - 41
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investment 8 320 269
(ii) Loans 9 - 22
(iii) Other financial assets 10 673 767

(h) Non-current income tax assets (net) 11 1,198 1,115
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 438 464
(j) Other non-current assets 13 1,877 1,654
Total non-current assets 19,805 16,797
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 12,238 11,621
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 15 2,005 1,759
(ii) Trade receivables 16 15,045 12,517
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 183 595
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 18 91 94
(v) Loans 19 176 38
(vi) Other financial assets 20 113 50

(c) Other current assets 21 2,380 1,617
32,231 28,291

(d) Assets classified as held for sale 22 25 80
Total current assets 32,256 28,371

Total Assets 52,061 45,168

Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 23 1,360 1,360
(b) Other equity 34,878 30,991
Total equity 36,238 32,351
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 24 60 73
(ii) Lease liabilities 47 72 84
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 26 16

(b) Provisions 26 760 615
(c) Other non-current liabilities 27 4 6
Total non-current liabilities 922 794
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 28 4,191 1,513
(ii) Lease liabilities 47 78 58
(iii) Trade payables 29

Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1,141 1,366
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises

5,853 5,938

(iv) Other financial liabilities 30 1,822 1,350
(b) Other current liabilities 31 852 809
(c) Provisions 32 964 660
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 33 - 329
Total current liabilities 14,901 12,023

Total equity and liabilities 52,061 45,168
Summary of material accounting policy information 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - HR, Admin, IA, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Notes Year ended 
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

I. 	 Income

	 (a) Revenue from operations 34 88,383 77,676

	 (b) Other income 35 1,307 667

Total Income 89,690 78,343

II. 	Expenses

	 (a) Cost of raw materials and components consumed 36 54,735 51,065

	 (b) Purchase of stock-in-trade 37 2,996 2,643

	 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and
		  work-in-progress

38 1,493 (1,396)

	 (d) Employee benefits expenses 39 7,263 5,685

	 (e) Finance costs 40 402 236

	 (f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,3,5,6 1,342 1,161

	 g) Other expenses 41 12,904 10,958

Total Expenses 81,135 70,352

III.	Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 8,555 7,991

IV. Exceptional items (net) (expenses) / income 62 - (80)

V. 	Profit before tax (III-IV) 8,555 7,911

VI.	Tax expense /(credit) 42

	 (a) Current tax 2,136 2,174

	 (b) Deferred tax credit 44 (173)

	 (c) Tax pertains to earlier years 56 (19)

Total tax expense 2,236 1,982

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 6,319 5,929

VIII. Other comprehensive income 43

	 (a)	Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss (70) (91)

	 (b) Income tax relating to above items 18 23

Total other comprehensive loss (net) (52) (68)

IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 6,267 5,861

X. Earnings per equity share 56

	 Basic and diluted earnings per share 
	 (Face value per share Rs.10)

46.46 43.60

Summary of material accounting policy information 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - HR, Admin, IA, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024



140

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

Statement of cash flow for the Year ended 31 March 2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2024 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(A) Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 8,555 7,911
Adjustment for:
Fair value adjustments relating to
- Financial assets at amortised cost - (4)
Provision / liabilities no longer required now written back (145) (61)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,342 1,161
Bad debts written off 36 29
Expected Credit Loss 194 492
Inventory written off 80 126
Property. plant and equipment written off 18 29
Gain on derecognition of ROU and Lease liability - (29)
Items considered separately:
Finance costs 385 220
Surplus on sale of investments (8) (49)
Interest expense on lease liability 14 15
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (41) (11)
Fair value change of financial asset measured at FVTPL (284) 9
Interest income (141) (116)
Rental income (129) (126)
Exchange gain on revaluation of foreign currency 
monetary item

(48) (1)

Exceptional items (Refer note 62) - 1,273 80 1,764
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,828 9,675
Adjustments for changes in working capital
Inventories (697) (2,750)
Trade receivables (2,709) (3,717)
Loans and Other receivables (919) 166
Trade payables (308) (382)
Liabilities and Provisions 860 (3,773) 165 (6,518)
Cash generated from operating activities 6,055 3,157
Income tax paid (2,605) (1,790)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,450 1,367

(B) Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
(including capital work-in-progress, intangible assets 
under development, capital advances and creditors 
for capital goods)

(4,164) (1,475)

Purchase of investments (369) (680)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 105 123
Proceeds from sale of investments 361 680
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2024 
Year ended 

31 March 2023 
Interest received 124 97
Rental received 129 129
Increase/ (decrease) in fixed deposits 125 160
Net cash used in investing activities (3,689) (966)

(C) Cash flow from financing activities
Finance cost (378) (220)
Finance cost paid on lease liabilities (14) (15)
Repayment of lease liability (66) (49)
Repayment of borrowings (12) (11)
Dividend paid (2,380) (1,700)
Proceeds from borrowings 2,677 1,528
Net cash used in financing activities (173) (467)

(D) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (412) (66)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year

595 661

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
[Refer note 17]

183 595

Notes to the cash flow statement

(a) The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March 2024

As at  
31 March 2023

Cash on hand 8 5
Balances with banks in current accounts 175 590

Total 183 595

Summary of material accounting policy information 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - HR, Admin, IA, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024
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Statement of changes in equity as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

A) 	 Equity share capital (Refer note 23)					   

Particulars Number of shares Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Issued, subscribed and paid up:

As at 31 March 2023 1,35,98,467 1,360

As at 31 March 2024 1,35,98,467 1,360
			 

B) 	 Other equity	 				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

General 
reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
reserve on 

amalgamation

Retained 
earning

Balance as at 1 April 
2022

14,669 223 140 11,800 26,832

Profit for the year - - - 5,929 5,929

Net other comprehensive 
(loss) for the year

- - - (68) (68)

Transfer from retained 
earnings to general 
reserve

452 - - (452) -

Equity dividend including 
taxes thereon as above

- - - (1,700) (1,700)

Balance as at 31 March 
2023

15,121 223 140 15,509 30,991

Profit for the year - - - 6,319 6,319

Net other comprehensive 
(loss) for the year

- - - (52) (52)

Transfer from retained 
earnings to general 
reserve

593 - - (593) -

Equity dividend including 
taxes thereon as above

- - - (2,380) (2,380)

Balance as at 31 March 
2024

15,714 223 140 18,803 34,878
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Nature and purpose of the reserves					   

(1) 	General reserve	 				  

	 The general reserve is a distributable reserve maintained by the Company to be utilised in accordance with 
the Act.					   

(2) 	Capital redemption reserve	 				  

	 The Capital redemption reserve was created on/during buy back of equity shares and it is a non-distributable 
reserve.					   

(3) 	Capital reserve on amalgamation					   

	 The Capital reserve has been created on the difference between the consideration for acquisition of Ador 
Welding Academy Private Limited (AWAPL) and the amount of share capital and security premium of AWAPL 
as per Ind AS 103 (Appendix C), Business combinations of entities under common control.		

(4) 	Retained earnings	 				  

	 The Retained earnings pertain to the accumulated earnings made by the Company over the years.		
								      

Summary of material accounting policy information		  1			 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements				  

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - HR, Admin, IA, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024
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Note 1 - Material accounting policy information to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2024	

I.	 Corporate Information

	 Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in 1951 and is one of India’s leading player in the 
field of Welding Products, Technologies and Services. The Company is also engaged in providing customized 
solutions for multi-disciplinary projects and contracts related to refineries, oil and gas, petrochemicals, 
fertilizers, steel plants, pharma, water and other chemical process industries. The Company is a public 
limited company and domiciled in India and its shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in 
India- the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange (India) Limited (NSE). The 
registered and corporate office of the Company is situated at Ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors 
on 30 April 2024.

II.	 Material Accounting Policy Information

	 Below is list of material accounting policy information applied by the Company in the preparation of its 
financial statements. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in 
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

(a)	 Basis of Preparation

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the 
Act and guidelines issued by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except 
for the certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value and defined benefit plan 
assets measured at fair values by Ind AS.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of asset or paid on transfer of liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants 
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

	 Current and non-current classification

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company’s normal 
operating cycle for each of its businesses, as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

(b)	 Critical estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, which requires management to make 
estimates, assumptions and exercise judgment in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and 
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

	 The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the 
Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which 
the results are known or materialised.

	 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and 
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to 
be different than those originally assessed.
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	 Useful lives of Property plant and equipment (PPE), investment property and Intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. 
Depreciation is provided as per the Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of assets. The 
Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. Management believes that useful life of assets are same (except for vehicles as 
disclosed in note 1(II)9c)) as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. - Refer note 1(II)(c),(d),(e) and (f).

	 Valuation of deferred tax assets / liabilities

	 The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Significant judgment is involved in arriving at the deferred tax assets and liabilities, which is based on the 
Company’s current operations and projections for the future. - Refer note 1(II)(o).

	 Defined benefit obligation 

	 The cost of post-employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation 
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rate of return on assets, future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these plans such estimates are subject to 
significant uncertainty. The assumptions used are disclosed in Note 50.

	 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 

	 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing 
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
- Refer note 1(II)(h).

	 Other areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
	 i) 	 Revenue from Flares and Process Equipment Division - Refer note 1(II)(I)
	 ii) 	 Estimation of tax expenses and tax payable - Refer note 42
	 iii) 	 Probable outcomes of matters included under Contingent Liabilities - Refer note 44
	 iv) 	 Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - Refer note 1(II)(p)

(c)	 Property plant and equipment

	 All items of Property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land) are stated at cost/deemed cost, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold Land is carried at 
historical cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures 
incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run expenses (net 
of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as 
part of cost of qualifying asset.

	 Items of property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal 
are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value and are shown separately in the 
financial statements. Any expected loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of tangible assets, which are 
carried at cost, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method based on useful life as estimated 
by the management and aligned to Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual 
usage of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired under finance lease is spread over the lease period or 
useful life, whichever is shorter.
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	 Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Assets Category Useful Life (in Years) Basis of Determination of useful life

Buildings 30-60 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Ownership Premises 30-60 years Assessed to be inline with schedule II to the Act

Plant and equipments 
(including computer)

8 to15 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Electrical installation 10 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Furniture and fixtures 8 to10 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Office equipment 5 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Vehicles 4 to10 years Management Estimate^

	 ^ As per management estimate and based on new vehicle policy, motor cars purchased after 1-4-2019 
are depreciated over 4 years. 

	 Assets not yet ready for intended use are recognised as capital work-in-progress.

(d)	 Non-current assets classified as held for sale:

	 Assets that are available for immediate sale and where the sale is highly probable of being completed 
within one year from the date of classification are considered and classified as assets held for sale. Assets 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The 
determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of management estimates and assumptions. 
The fair value of asset held for sale has been estimated using observable inputs such as price quotations. 
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance 
sheet.

(e)	 Intangible Assets (including intangibles under development)

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Intangible assets relating to product development are recorded at actual cost incurred on the development 
of products and are capitalised once the products receive approval from relevant authorities and the 
same are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

	 Subsequent measurement (amortisation and useful lives)

	 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation 
period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed 
accordingly.

	 Software and implementation costs including users license fees of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
system and other application software costs are amortised over a period of three years. The amortisation 
expense on intangible assets with finite life is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head 
Depreciation and amortization expense. 

	 Derecognition 

	 An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the 
retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.
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(f)	 Investment properties

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied 
by the entity, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including 
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed, when incurred. When part of an Investment property is replaced, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

	 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method, based on useful life as estimated 
by the management and aligned to Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual 
usage of assets.

	 Derecognition 

	 Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit 
or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition 
of investment property the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a 
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if 
any).

	 Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers between 
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of 
the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure 
purposes.

	 Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 

Assets Category Useful Life (in Years) Basis of Determination of useful life

Buildings 30-60 years Assessed to be in line with schedule II to the Act

Ownership Premises 30-60 years Assessed to be inline with schedule II to the Act

(g)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 The carrying amount of the non-financial assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is 
any indication of impairment based on internal /external factors. An impairment loss is recognised, 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its fair value less disposal cost and its value in use. Impairment 
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 After impairment, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over 
its remaining useful life.

	 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However, 
the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by 
charging usual depreciation / amortisation, if there were no impairment.
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(h)	 Investments and financial assets

	 Classification

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) 	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss), and 

(ii) 	 those measured at amortised cost.

	 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.

	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit and loss 
or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business 
model, in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether 
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity 
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

	 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of  
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

	 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 

	 However, trade receivables that do not contain a signficant financing component are measured at 
transaction price.

	 Measurement of debt instruments

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. 

	 There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

(i) 	 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss 
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging 
relationship is recognised in statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest 
rate method.

(ii) 	Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition 
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or loss and 
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate method.
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(iii) 	Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or 
FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship 
is recognised in statement of profit and loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss 
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income.

	 Impairment of financial assets 

	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

	 For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the 
receivables.

	 De-recognition of financial assets

	 A financial asset is derecognised only when

(i) 	 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or,

(ii)	  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of the cash on hand 
and at bank and current investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash 
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(j)	 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

	 Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs 
incurred). Difference between the fair value and the transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an 
asset / liability based on the underlying reason for the difference. Subsequently all financial liabilities are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(k)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the ‘average 
cost’ method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw material, packing materials, 
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(l)	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the entity satisfies a performance obligation 
by transferring a promised good or service to customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Amounts disclosed 
as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and discounts, 
value added taxes, goods and service tax and applicable taxes, which are collected on behalf of the 
government or on behalf of third parties.

i) 	 Sale of consumables

	 Revenue from sale of consumables is recognised at point in time when the control of the asset is 
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the consumables.



150

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

ii)	 Flares and process equipment division (FPED)

	 Project engineering contracts generally take more than one year for execution. A contract’s transaction 
price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation within that contract and recognized as 
revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. The majority of Company’s contracts 
have a single performance obligation as the promise to transfer the individual goods or services is not 
separately identifiable from other promises in the contracts and is, therefore, not distinct. For contracts 
with distinct performance obligations, Company allocate the contract’s transaction price to each 
performance obligation using the best estimate of the standalone selling price (i.e. fair value based 
on market approach) of each distinct goods or service in the contract. Generally, most of the revenue 
in project engineering segments is recognized over time, because control of the asset is transferred 
as and when the asset is created or enhanced to customers.

	 The Company monitors estimates of total contract revenue and costs on a regular basis throughout 
the contract period. The cumulative impact of any change in estimates of the contract value or cost 
is reflected in the period in which the changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated 
on a particular contract, provision is made for the estimated loss.

iii) 	Contract Assets

	 Contract assets represent revenue recognized in excess of revenue billed. These amounts are billed 
after milestones specified in the agreement are achieved. Contract assets are disclosed under Other 
Current Assets in the Balance sheet.

iv) 	Benefit on account of entitlement to Import duty

	 Duty drawback or merchant export from India (MEIS) scheme are accounted in the year of export 
as export incentives. From, 1 January 2021 onwards, Merchant Export from India (MEIS) Scheme has 
been abolished by Central Government, and introduced Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export 
Products (RoDTEP) scheme, under which exporters receive the refunds on the embedded taxes and 
duties previously non-recoverable. Tax credit as per RoDTEP scheme is accounted on receipt basis.”

(m)	Other income

	 Interest income for all debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms 
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not 
consider the expected credit losses.

(n)	 Employee Benefits

	 Provident fund: Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, 
where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as “”Defined Contribution 
Schemes””, as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made 
on a monthly basis.

	 Gratuity fund: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering 
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides 
a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. 

	 The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of 
each year. Actuarial gains / losses arising on the measurement of defined benefit obligation are credited 
/ charged to other comprehensive income.
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	 Superannuation fund: Contribution towards superannuation fund for certain employees is made to Ador 
Welding Employees Superannuation Fund Trust administered by the Company. The benefit is classified as 
a “Defined Contribution Schemes” as the Company does not carry any further obligation, apart from the 
contribution made on a monthly basis.

	 Employees state insurance scheme: The Company makes contribution to state plans namely Employees 
State Insurance Scheme and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.

	 Compensated absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed 
or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. 
The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the 
year end.

	 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 
months from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability 
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses 
/ gains are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

	 Termination benefits: Termination benefits in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss, as and when incurred.

(o)	 Income taxes

	 Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses and net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities 
during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except 
when they relate to item that are recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in Equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in 
Equity respectively.

(i) 	 Current income tax

	 The current income tax includes income tax payable by the Company, computed in accordance 
with the tax laws applicable in the jurisdiction in which the Company operates. Advance tax and 
provision for current income tax are presented in the Balance sheet after offsetting the advance tax 
paid and income tax provision arising in the same jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units 
intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

(ii) 	Deferred income tax

	 Deferred income tax is recognised using Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of recognition.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised. 

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow or part of deferred 
income tax assets to be utilised. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred 
tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized.
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply 
to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously

(p)	 Leases

	 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) 	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii)	 the Company has substantially all economic benefits from use of the asset through out the period of 
the lease and

(iii)	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and 
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and 
leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on  
a straightline basis over the term of the lease.

	 The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 
made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the 
lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement 
normally also adjusts the leased assets.

	 Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

	 As a Lessor:

	 Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in other income on a 
straight line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets 
are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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(q)	 Foreign currency transactions

	 The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee.

	 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the Balance sheet date and exchange gain or loss arising on settlement and restatement 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are 
not retranslated.

(r)	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it 
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined 
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet 
date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management 
estimates. 

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose 
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(s)	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earning per share is computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive 
income) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

	 Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive 
income) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the 
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic 
earning per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if 
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share.

(t)	 Provision for warranty

	 Warranty costs are provided based on a technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs, 
replacement, material cost, servicing on the basis of the past experience of the Company. It is expected 
that this expenditure will be incurred over the contractual warranty period.

(u)	 Research & Development

	 Revenue expenditure on research & development (including overheads) are charged out as expense in 
the year in which they are incurred. Expenditure of a capital nature on research & development is debited 
to respective fixed assets and depreciation is provided on such assets, as are depreciable.

(v)	 Recent Pronouncements

	 The Company applied for the first time these amendments of Ind AS 8, Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 12 and there 
are no material impact on financial statements. 

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 
31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to existing standards applicable to 
the Company.
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Note 3 - Right-of-use asset [Refer note 47]	 				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Description Leasehold 
Land

Ownership 
premises

Computers Total

Gross carrying value

As at 01 April 2022 364 125 54 543

Additions - 111 23 134

Deductions - 122 - 122

As at 31 March 2023 364 114 77 555

Additions 230 - 73 303

Deductions - - - - 

As at 31 March 2024 594 114 150 858

Accumulated amortisation

As at 01 April 2022 5 48 9 62

Amortisation charge 2 29 26 57

Deductions - 48 - 48

As at 31 March 2023 7 29 35 71

Amortisation charge 12 38 31 81

Deductions - - - - 

As at 31 March 2024 19 67 66 152

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2023 357 85 42 484

As at 31 March 2024 575 47 84 706

Notes:-					  

(a) 	The Company incurred Rs. 370 lakhs in the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs. 331 lakhs) towards 
expenses relating to short-term leases. The total cash outflow for leases is Rs. 450 lakhs for the year ended 
31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs. 396 lakhs), including cash outflow of short-term leases. Interest on lease 
liabilities is Rs. 14 lakhs for the year 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs. 15 lakhs).  [Refer note 40 and note 
47]	
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Note 4 - Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)	 				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Opening balance 151 706

Add : Addition during the year 2,793 1,049

Less : Capitalised during the year (407) (1,604)

Total 2,537 151

					   

a) 	 CWIP ageing schedule					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2024 Total

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 
years

Projects in progress 2,499 38 - - 2,537

Projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - - 

Total 2,499 38 - - 2,537

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2023 Total

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 
years

Projects in progress 148 3 - - 151

Projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - - 

Total 148 3 - - 151
					   

	 Note: There are no projects in PPE, which are overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan 
as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.		
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Note 5 - Investment properties				 

(Rs. in lakhs)
Description Freehold 

land
Buildings Ownership 

premises
Total

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
As at 01 April 2022 49 852 82 983

Additions - - - -
Adjustments [Refer note (c) below] 18 - 12 30
Deductions 18 - 12 30
Transfer from PPE - 663 38 701
As at 31 March 2023 13 1,516 96 1,624
Additions - 20 - 20
Adjustments - - - -
Deductions - - - -
Transfer from PPE 2 77 - 79
As at 31 March 2024 15 1,613 96 1,723
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 - 221 33 254
Depreciation charge - 26 1 27
Adjustments [Refer note (c) below] - - 5 5
Deductions - - 5 5
Transfer from PPE - 299 10 309
As at 31 March 2023 - 546 34 580
Depreciation charge - 40 2 42
Adjustments - - - -
Deductions - - - -
Transfer from PPE - 17 - 17
As at 31 March 2024 - 603 36 639
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 13 970 62 1,045

As at 31 March 2024 15 1,010 60 1,085

Notes:	 			 

(a) 	Fair Value of Investment properties*	 			 

(Rs. in lakhs)
Description Freehold land Buildings Ownership 

premises
Total

As at 31 March 2023 9,035 1,457 841 11,333
As at 31 March 2024 9,299 1,484 3,047 13,830

	 *Estimation of fair value				  

	 During the year, valuations of the Investment properties is performed by a registered valuer as defined under 
Rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. The fair value measurement is based 
on comparable sales approach. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 3 of fair value hierarchy. 
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The fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market of similar properties. The main inputs used 
for valuation are quantum, area, location, demand, quality of construction, age of building and trend of fair 
market etc.			 

(b)	  Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property :	 			 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Rental income derived from investment properties 129 126

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) for 
properties generating rental income

(22) (21)

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 107 105

Less: Depreciation (42) (27)

Profit arising from investment properties 65 78

(c) 	During the previous year, the Company has sold part property at kochi (1st Floor), for a consideration of  
Rs. 90 lakhs having gross block of Rs. 30 lakhs and accumulated depreciation of Rs. 6 lakhs shown under head 
“Investment Properties”.				  

Note 6 - Intangible assets
(Rs. in lakhs)

Description Computer  
Software

E learning 
Module

Total

Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2022 735 11 746
Additions 5 - 5
Deductions - - -
As at 31 March 2023 740 11 751
Additions 74 - 74
Deductions 61 - 61
As at 31 March 2024 753 11 764
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2022 669 10 679
Amortisation charge 25 - 25
Deductions - - -
As at 31 March 2023 694 10 704
Amortisation charge 51 1 52
Deductions 61 - 61
As at 31 March 2024 684 11 695
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 46 1 47
As at 31 March 2024 69 - 69
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Note 7 - Intangible assets under development (IAUD)						    

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Opening balance 41 4

Add : Addition during the year 26 37

Less : Capitalised during the year (67) -

Total - 41
						    

Particulars Amount in IAUD as on 31 March 2024 Total
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 

years
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - -

Total - - - - -

Particulars Amount in IAUD as on 31 March 2023 Total
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 

years
Projects in progress 37 4 - - 41
Projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - -

Total 37 4 - - 41

Note: There are no projects in IAUD, which are overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as 
at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.	

Note 8 - Investment (Non-current)		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Investment in debt instruments

Investment in quoted debentures valued at amortised cost, fully paid 
up

Aditya Birla Finance Limited (March 31, 2024 - 1 unit  
(March 31, 2023 - Nil unit) having Face value of Rs. 150 Lakhs each

151 -

Capsave Finance Private Limited (March 31, 2024 - Nil unit  
(March 31, 2023 - 10 units) having Face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each

- 100

Incred Financial Services Limited (March 31, 2024 - 16 units  
( March 31, 2023 - 16 units) having Face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each

169 169

Total 320 269

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 320 269

Market value of quoted investments (including interest accrued) 348 287

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
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Note 9 - Loans (Non-current)		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Loan to employees (Unsecured, considered good) - 22

Total - 22
		

Note 10 - Other financial assets (Non-current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Security deposit 208 177

Fixed deposits held as lien by bank against bank guarantees (Refer note 
44)

465 590

Total 673 767
		

Note 11 - Non-current income tax assets (net)		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Advance income tax (net of provision) 1,198 1,115

Total 1,198 1,115
		

Notes:	 	

(a) 	The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Income tax assets 7,739 5,619

Income tax liabilities 6,541 4,504

Net balances 1,198 1,115
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Note 12 - Deferred tax assets (net)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets on account of:
Employee benefits 337 250
Allowance for credit impairment 896 943
Section 43B Disallowance 10 -
Ind AS 116 5 -

1,248 1,193
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
“Timing difference between book depreciation and depreciation  
as per Income Tax Act, 1961 “

736 727

Financial asset measured at FVTPL 74 2
810 729

Net deferred tax assets 438 464

Note 13 - Other non-current assets		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Capital advances considered good [Refer notes (a) below] 458 198

Capital advances credit impaired [Refer notes (a) below] 27 27

Less : Loss allowance (27) (27)

458 198

Balances with government authorities considered good 1,362 1,389

Balances with government authorities credit impaired 1,021 1,053

Less : Loss allowance (1,021) (1,053)

1,362 1,389

Prepaid expenses 57 67

Total 1,877 1,654

Break-up:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Other assets considered good - Secured - -
Other assets considered good - Unsecured 1,877 1,654
Other assets credit impaired 1,048 1,080
Other assets which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loss allowance (1,048) (1,080)

Total 1,877 1,654
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Notes:	 	
(a) 	Capital advances include:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Land at Raipur - 30

Land at Silvassa 27 27

Less : Provision for capital advances (27) (27)

Building 363 55

Plant & Machinery 92 -

Furniture And Fixtures 3 113

Total 458 198

Note 14 - Inventories		
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Raw materials, components and packing material 6,749 4,751

Work-in-progress 1,412 1,433

Finished goods * 2,885 4,095

Stock-in-trade 141 526

Stores, spares, parts, scrap etc. 643 531

Right to receive inventory 408 285

Total 12,238 11,621

Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing, and net realisable value. Write-
downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 80 lakhs (31 March 2023: 126 lakhs). These write 
down were recognised as an expense during the year and included in the ‘Changes in inventories of finished 
goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

* Certain imported inventory amounting to Rs. 336 lakhs, which has been detained by the Bureau of Indian 
Standards (BIS). As according to BIS, the said imported inventory doesn’t meet the standards as specified in 
the notification issued by BIS. The Company had filed an application with the BIS Authorities, for compounding 
of an alleged Offence under Section 33 of BIS Act, 2016 on 05 May 2023. The Company received an order 
dated 15 June 2023 allowing the Compounding application, subject to payment of compounding amount of 
Rs. 3,643 lakhs, under the BIS Act 2016 and BIS Rules, 2018. As the Compounding amount was unfair, arbitrary 
and unreasonable, the Company filed a Writ Petition in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court, since the filing of the 
appeal with DG was not an efficacious remedy, challenging the said compounding order, and got a stay. As 
the proceedings have not yet started, the pleadings are yet to begin, hence no provision has been made 
towards compounding amount in the books, as of 31 March 2024, since the final / exact /appropriate amount of 
compounding is yet to be determined.		

Refer note 28 for details on Inventory pledged as security against borrowings of the Company.
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Note 15 - Investments (Current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Financial assets classified and measured at fair value through profit 
or loss

(A) 	Investment in mutual funds (Unquoted)

	 Axis Bluechip fund - growth-direct plan - 96

	 (31 March 2024: Nil units, 31 March 2023: 206,470.03)

	 Axis Strategic Bond fund - growth-direct plan 176 162

	 (31 March 2024: 641,195.42 units, 31 March 2023: 641,195.42 units)

	 Birla Sunlife Low Duration fund - direct plan-growth 69 102

	 (31 March 2024: 10,544.60 units, 31 March 2023: 16,652.44 units)

	 HDFC Credit Risk Debt fund - growth - direct plan 175 162

	 (31 March 2024: 749,799.09 units, 31 March 2023: 749,799.09 units)

	 HDFC Short Term Debt fund - growth - direct plan 144 134

	 (31 March 2024: 486,028.23 units, 31 March 2023: 486,028.23 units)

	 ICICI Prudential Medium Term Bond fund - growth - direct plan 176 163

	 (31 March 2024: 399,964.54 units, 31 March 2023: 399,964.54 units)

	 ICICI Prudential Short Term fund - growth - direct plan 147 136

	 (31 March 2024: 249,850.69 units, 31 March 2023: 249,850.69 units)

	 Kotak Bluechip fund -growth - direct plan 190 142

	 (31 March 2024: 34,117.28 units, 31 March 2023: 34,117.28 units)

	 Kotak Medium Term fund -growth - direct plan 110 101

	 (31 March 2024: 491,699.74 units, 31 March 2023: 491,699.74 units)

	 Mirae Asset Focused fund -growth - direct plan 118 96

	 (31 March 2024: 506,294.33 units, 31 March 2023: 506,294.33 units)

	 Mirae Asset Large Cap fund -growth - direct plan 130 103

	 (31 March 2024: 121,533.18 units, 31 March 2023: 121,533.18 units)

	 SBI Focused Equity fund -growth - direct plan 130 96

	 (31 March 2024: 40,104.67 units, 31 March 2023: 40,104.67 units)

	 UTI Flexicap fund - growth - direct plan 152 123

	 (31 March 2024: 52,881.32 units, 31 March 2023: 52,881.32 units)

	 Birla sunlife floating rate fund - growth - direct plan 13 12

	 (31 March 2024: 4,048.083 units; 31 March 2023: 4,048.083 units)

	 Birla sunlife arbitrage fund - growth - direct plan 7 6

	 (31 March 2024: 25,184.984 units; 31 March 2023: 25,184.984 units)

	 Birla sunlife arbitrage fund - growth - regular plan 47 44

	 (31 March 2024: 191,405.590 units; 31 March 2023: 191,405.590  
	 units)
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

	 SBI Magnum low duration fund - growth plan 19 18

	 (31 March 2024: 602.522 units; 31 March 2023: 602.522 units)

	 Bandhan Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 8 7

	 (31 March 2024: 35,493.508 units; 31 March 2023: 35,493.508 units)

	 Aditya Birla sunlife equity hybrid 95 fund - growth - direct plan 18 14

	 (31 March 2024: 1,245.128 units; 31 March 2023: 1,245.128 units)

	 HDFC Corporate bond fund - growth - regular plan 13 12

	 (31 March 2024: 43,871.772 units; 31 March 2023: 43,871.772 units)

	 Parag Parikh Flexi Cap Fund - Direct Plan 133 -

	 (31 March 2024: 178,083.371 units; 31 March 2023: Nil units)

	 Investment in mutual funds 				        (A) 1,975 1,729

(B) 	Investment in bonds (Quoted)

	 9.60% Tourism Finance Corporation Limited Bonds_2028 20 20

	 (31 March 2024: 2 units, 31 March 2023: 2 units) having Face value of  
	 Rs. 10 Lakhs each

	 9.65% Tourism Finance Corporation Limited Bonds_2033 10 10

	 (31 March 2024: 1 unit, 31 March 2023: 1 unit) having Face value  
	 of Rs. 10 Lakhs each

	 Investment in bonds 					          (B) 30 30

Total (A+B) 2,005 1,759

Aggregate amount of investments and its market value

Unquoted 1,975 1,729

Quoted 30 30

Note 16 - Trade receivables							     

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Trade receivables 16,092 13,743

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 51) 62 32

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -

Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,426 1,426

Less : Allowance for credit impairment (2,535) (2,684)

Total 15,045 12,517
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Break-up:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 

31 March 2024
As at 

31 March 2023

Secured, considered good [Refer note (a) below] 3,200 1,457

Unsecured, considered good [Refer note (b) below] 12,954 12,318

Unsecured, credit impaired 1,426 1,426

Less : Allowance for credit impairment (2,535) (2,684)

Total 15,045 12,517

Break up of Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)			 

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 

31 March 2024
As at 

31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good [Refer note (b) below] 1,109 1,258

Unsecured, credit impaired 1,426 1,426

Total 2,535 2,684
						    

Trade Receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2024	 					   
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  
due date of payment

TotalNot 
due

Less 
than 6 
months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) 	 Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

6,679 6,514 470 213 863 225 14,964

(ii) 	 Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii) 	Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

(iv) 	Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

- - - - 1,061 129 1,190

(v) 	Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)	  Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - 1,297 129 1,426

Total 6,679 6,514 470 213 3,221 483 17,580

Less: Allowance for credit impairment (2,535)

Total 15,045
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Trade Receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2023						    
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  
due date of payment

TotalNot 
due

Less 
than 6 
months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) 	 Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

6238 4,305 441 932 408 261 12,585

(ii) 	 Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii) 	Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

(iv)	Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

- - - 1,061 - 129 1,190

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)	Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - 1,297 - 129 1,426

Total 6,238 4,305 441 3,290 408 519 15,201

Less: Allowance for credit impairment (2684)

Total 12,517

Notes:	 						    
(a) 	Secured by letter of credit							     
(b) 	Refer notes 54(A) for information on credit risk and details regarding past dues receivables and, movement in 

allowance for credit impairment.							     
(c) 	No amount is due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with 

any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or 
a director or a member except as disclosed in note no. 51.

(d) 	Refer note 28, for details on trade receivables pledged as security against the borrowings of the Company.

Note 17 - Cash and cash equivalents							     

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Balances with banks in current accounts 175 590

Cash on hand 8 5

Total 183 595
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Note 18 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

In unpaid dividend accounts [Refer note (a) below] 91 93

Unspent corporate social responsibilities balances with banks - 1

Total 91 94

Note:

(a) 	There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as 
at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.							     

Note 19 - Loans (Current)							     

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Loans to employees (Unsecured, considered good) 176 38

Total 176 38

Note 20 - Other financial assets (Current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Security deposits 64 20

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 37 20

Other receivables

(a) from related parties (Refer note 51) - -

(b) from others 12 10

Total 113 50

Note 21 - Other current assets	 						    

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Contract assets 114 114

Advance to suppliers 875 840

Prepaid expenses 224 319

Export incentive receivable 18 20

Input tax credit receivable 1,108 242

Other receivables 4 26

Others 37 56

Total 2,380 1,617
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Note 22 - Asset classified as held for sale							     

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Leasehold land 18 18

Ownership premises 7 7

Plant and equipments (Refer note (a) below) - 55

Total 25 80

Note: Asset classified as held for sale (Ind AS 105)							     

(a) 	During the Current year, the Company has sold manufacturing facility of wires at Silvassa, for a consideration 
of Rs. 78 lakhs which has been duly approved by Board, which was reported under ‘Assets classified as held 
for sale’ in FY 2022-23.

Item wise net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 of the Asset classified as held for sale is as follows	

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Gross carrying  
value 

Impairement Accumulated 
depreciation

Net carrying  
value 

Leasehold land 18 - - 18

Ownership Premises 12 - 5 7

Total 30 - 5 25
			 

Item wise net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 of the Asset classified as held for sale is as follows:	

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Gross carrying  
value 

Impairement Accumulated 
depreciation

Net carrying  
value 

Leasehold land 18 - - 18

Ownership Premises 12 - 5 7

Plant and equipments 206 146 5 55

Total 236 146 10 80

Note 23 - Equity share capital

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Authorised shares

33,000,000 (31 March 2023: 33,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,300 3,300

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

13,598,467 (31 March 2023: 13,598,467) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
fully paid up

1,360 1,360

Total 1,360 1,360
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Note 23 a- Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
year:	 									       

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares (Rs. in lakhs) No. of shares (Rs. in lakhs)

Equity shares

Shares outstanding at the 
beginning of the year

1,35,98,467 1,360 1,35,98,467 1,360

Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of 
the year

1,35,98,467 1,360 1,35,98,467 1,360

						    

Note 23 b- Rights, preferences and restrictions

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par (face) value of Rs. 10 per 
share. Each and every shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Note 23 c- Shares held by holding Company

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares 
held

% of holding No. of shares 
held

% of holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

J. B. Advani & Company Private 
Limited

6,800,531 50.01 6,800,531 50.01

						    

Note 23 d- Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the 
Company	 									       

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares 
held

% of holding No. of shares 
held

% of holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

J. B. Advani & Company Private 
Limited

6,800,531 50.01 6,800,531 50.01

Total 68,00,531 50.01 68,00,531 50.01
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Note 23f- The Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash nor has there 
been any buyback of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2024.	

Note 24 - Borrowing (Non-current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Secured Term Loan from Bank

Vehicle Loan* 60 73

Total 60 73

* The Company has availed vehicle loans from Bank of Baroda at floating rate of interest based on RBI Repo 
rate plus Credit risk premium of 2.65%, repayable in 84 months & 64 months EMI of Rs. 1.07 lakhs & Rs 0.55 lakh 
respectively.		

The above loan is hypothecated against the vehicles having a gross block of Rs. 125 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : 125 
lakhs) and written-down value of Rs. 62 lakh as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : 92 lakhs).		

Note 25 - Other financial liabilities (Non-current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Rent deposit 3 -

Rent deposit from related parties [Refer note 51] 23 16

Total 26 16

Note 26 - Provisions (Non-current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity [Refer note 50(II)] 760 615

Total 760 615

Note 27 - Other non-current liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Advance income 4 6

Total 4 6
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Note 28 - Borrowings (Current)
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Secured Borrowings
From banks
Working capital loan repayable on demand [Refer note (i) below and 
note 57]

4,000 1,500

Current maturities of Long term borrowing - Vehicle Loan 14 13
Cash credit facility availed from bank 177 -

Total 4,191 1,513

Notes:		
(i) 	 Nature of Security and terms of repayment for short term secured borrowings of Company:	
	 Working capital loan from a bank, balance outstanding amount as at 31 March 2024 is Rs. 4,000 Lakhs (31 

March 2024: Rs 1,500 Lakhs) is secured first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s entire 
stocks and book debts, both present and future, exclusive charge on the entire plant and machinery and 
other movable fixed assets of the Company and on the land and building of the Company located at survey 
no. 59/11/1, 59/11/2, 59/11/3, 59/12 and 59/13 situated at village Masat, Silvassa Dadra and Nagar Haveli. 
Working capital loan repayable on demand, rate of interest 8.05% p.a. (31 March 2023: 7.86% p.a.)

(ii) 	 Guarantees given by banks to third parties amounting to Rs. 1,295 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1,742 lakhs) on 
behalf of the Company are secured against securities mentioned in (i) above. (Refer note 44)

Note 29 - Trade payables
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Dues to micro and small enterprises [Refer notes (a) below] 877 1,051
Amounts due to micro and small enterprises - related parties 264 315
Others 5,369 5,191
Sub-total 6,510 6,557
Accrued expenses 484 747

Total 6,994 7,304

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  

date of invoice
TotalLess than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More 

than 3 
years

Undisputed - MSME 1,141 - 0 - 1,141
Undisputed - Others 4,132 15 - 1,197 5,344
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - 10 15 25

5,273 15 10 1,212 6,510
Accrued expenses 484

Total 5,273 15 10 1,212 6,994
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Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  
date of invoice

TotalLess than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More 
than 3 
years

Undisputed - MSME 1,366 - - - 1,366

Undisputed - Others 3,882 31 1,219 60 5,191

Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -

Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

5,248 31 1,219 60 6,557

Accrued expenses 747

Total 5,248 31 1,219 60 7,304

Notes :					   

(a) 	The Company has amount due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006, (MSMED Act). The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Principal amount due remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of 
accounting year

1,141 1,366

Interest due remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of accounting 
year

2 -

Amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along 
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year

- -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal 
has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

- -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year

2 -

Amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23

- -

				  

This information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as Micro and 
Small enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.
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Note 30 - Other financial liabilities (Current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Deposits:

(a) Rent deposit 8 14

(b) From distributors 289 290

(c) From others 4 4

Employee benefits payable 775 553

Unclaimed dividend 91 93

Creditors for capital goods 345 163

Corporate Social Responsibility Liability - 1

Other payables

(a) to related parties (Refer note 51) 110 109

(b) to others* 200 123

Total 1,822 1,350

*It includes retention money of contractors and payable for superannuation fund.

Note 31 - Other current liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Advances received from distributors on behalf of customers 12 12

Advances received from customers 145 228

Statutory dues 692 568

Advance income 3 1

Total 852 809

Note 32 - Provisions (Current)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity [Refer note 50(II)] 118 49

Provision for Compensated absences [Refer note 50(III)] 462 329

Other provisions [Refer note (a) and (b) below]

Provision for warranties [Refer note (a) and (b) below] 197 83

Provision for sales return [Refer note (a) below] 187 199

Total 964 660
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Notes:					   
(a) 	Movement in provisions:					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Provision for  
warranties 

Provision for  
sales return

As at 1 April 2022 96 222

Additional provision recognised 83 199

Amount used (charged against provisions) during the year (96) (222)

As at 31 March 2023 83 199

Additional provision recognised 197 187

Amount used (charged against provisions) during the year (83) (199)

As at 31 March 2024 197 187

(b) 	Provision of Rs. 197 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 83 lakhs) has been recognised for expected warranty claims 
on welding equipment and goods traded during the current financial year. It is expected that all these 
expenditures will be incurred in next financial year.

Note 33 - Current tax liabilities, (net)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Provision for income tax (Refer note below) - 329

Total - 329

Note: For the year ended March 31, 2023, Provision for Income tax Rs. 2,174 lakhs and advance tax Rs. 1,845 
lakhs.

Note 34 - Revenue from operations

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Sale of goods (Refer notes (a) below and Refer note 51)

Domestic  75,590  69,927 

Export  12,154  7,129 

Sale of services  128  59 

Other operating revenue:

Sale of scraps and others  511  561 

Total  88,383  77,676 

Notes:	 	

(a) 	Refer note 60 for information on Revenue from contracts with customers under Ind AS 115.
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Note 35 - Other income

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost:

(i) Fixed deposits with banks  33  35 

(ii) Overdue amount from customers  71  50 

(iii) Others  37  31 

Realised gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

 8  49 

Rent received (Refer notes 48 and 51)  129  126 

Duty drawback and export incentive  229  119 

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  41  11 

Foreign currency fluctuation gain (net)  252  93 

Provisions/ liabilities no longer required now written back  145  61 

Fair value change of financial asset measured at FVTPL  284  - 

Insurance claims received  20  6 

Miscellaneous income  58  86 

Total  1,307  667

Note 36 - Cost of raw materials and components consumed

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Opening stock  4,751  3,771 

Add: Purchases  56,733  52,045 

Less: Closing stock  (6,749)  (4,751)

Total  54,735  51,065 

Note 37 - Purchase of stock-in-trade

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Welding products  2,388  1,796 

Welding accessories  608  847 

Total  2,996  2,643 
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Note 38 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

At the beginning of the Year

Finished goods (including Right to receive inventory)  4,380  3,175 

Stock-in-trade  526  742 

Work-in-progress  1,433  6,339  1,026  4,943 

At the end of the Year

Finished goods (including Right to receive inventory)  3,293  4,380 

Stock-in-trade  141  526 

Work-in-progress  1,412  4,846  1,433  6,339 

Total  1,493  (1,396)

Note 39 - Employee benefits expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus  6,057  4,730 

Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer note 50(I)]  336  274 

Contribution to gratuity [Refer note 50(II)]  166  103 

Staff welfare expenses  704  578 

Total  7,263  5,685 

Note 40 - Finance costs

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Interest expense on borrowings  309  166 

Interest on supplies  76  54 

Interest on lease liability [Refer note 47]  14  15 

Interest on others  3  1 

Total  402  236
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Note 41 - Other expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Manufacturing and other expenses [Refer note 41(a)]  5,174  4,437 

Electricity expenses  23  24 

Rent [Refer note 47]  370  331 

Freight  2,633  2,364 

Legal and professional fees  627  498 

Insurance  82  92 

Repairs and maintenance - others  181  174 

Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses  772  612 

Telephone, postage and telegram  184  162 

Rates and taxes  115  84 

Advertisement and sales promotion expenses  433  198 

Commission paid  159  49 

Bad debts written off (net)  36  29 

Expected credit loss  194  492 

Donations  1  - 

Fair value change of financial asset measured at FVTPL  -  9 

Property. plant and equipment written off  18  29 

Printing and stationery  143  85 

Auditors remuneration [Refer note 41(b)]  49  46 

Corporate social responsibility [Refer note 63]  95  63 

Selling and distribution incentive  247  183 

Housekeeping and security charges  265  225 

Bank charges  134  144 

Miscellaneous expenses  969  628 

Total  12,904  10,958

Note 41(a)- Manufacturing and other expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Consumption of stores, spare parts and scraps  1,315 1170

Power and fuel  1,619 1594

Repairs to machinery  165 156

Repairs to building  157 49

Payment to contract labours  1,107 860

Other manufacturing expenses  811 608

Total  5,174  4,437 
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Note 41(b)- Auditors’ remuneration (excluding taxes)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Statutory audit fees (including limited review fees)  42 31

Tax audit fees  5 7

Certification and other matters  1 7

Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  1 1

Total  49  46

Note 42 - Tax (credit)/expense

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Current tax 

Current tax for the year  2,136  2,174 

Tax pertaining to earlier years  56  (19)

 2,192  2,155 

Deferred tax

Change in deferred tax assets  (37)  (151)

Change in deferred tax liabilities  81  (22)

 44  (173)

Total  2,236  1,982 

Notes :	 				  

(a) 	The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit is as 
follows for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Profit before tax as per books  8,555  7,911 

Applicable income tax rate (%) 25.17 25.17

Estimated income tax expenses  2,153  1,991 

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in 
calculating taxable income:

Non-deductible expenses  27  16 

Tax on income at different tax rates  -  (6)

Tax pertaining to earlier years  56  (19)

Reported income tax expenses  2,236  1,982 



18171st Annual Report 2023-24

FINANCIALS
Corporate PROFILE Statutory Report

(b) 	Deferred tax related to the following:					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 

2024

Recognised 
through 

profit and 
loss and 

OCI

As at 
31 March 

2023

Recognised 
through 

profit and 
loss and 

OCI

As at 
1 April 
2022

Deferred tax assets on account of:

Provision for gratuity and Leave 
encashment

 337  87  250  48  202 

Expected Credit Loss  896  (47)  943  126  817 

Section 43B Disallowance  10  10  -  -  - 

Ind AS 116  5  5  -  -  - 

Total deferred tax assets  1,248  55  1,193  174  1,019 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:

On timing difference between book 
depreciation and depreciation as per 
Income Tax Act, 1961 

 736  9  727  (19)  746 

Financial asset measured at FVTPL  74  72  2  (3)  5 

Total deferred tax liabilities  810  81  729  (22)  751 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)  438  (26)  464  196  268
 

Note 43 - Other comprehensive income

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Actuarial (loss) on defined benefit obligations  (70)  (91)

Income tax effect on above  18  23 

Total  (52)  (68)
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Note 44 - Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

A. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:
	 - 	Disputed sales tax as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 31 March 2024: Rs 

65 lakhs; 31 March 2023: Rs 102 lakhs)
 629  1,317 

	 - 	Disputed excise duties as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 31 March 2024: 
Rs 901 lakhs; 31 March 2023:Rs 900 Lakhs)

 936  922 

	 - 	Disputed income tax as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 31 March 2024: 
Rs 13 lakhs; 31 March 2023: Rs. 13 lakhs)

 157  153 

	 - 	Custom Duty refund (advance paid 31 March 2024: Rs 46 lakhs; 31 March 2023: Rs. 
46 lakhs)

 46  46 

B. Guarantees :
	 - 	Bank guarantees 
		  Bank guarantees of Rs. 1,382 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1,811 lakhs) have been 

issued to various customers as performance gurantee, Rs. 321 lakhs (31 March 2023:  
Rs. 235 lakhs) issued for securing supplies of materials and services and Rs. 36 lakhs 
(31 March 2023: Rs. 41 lakhs) to various agencies including government as security. 
The Company does not anticipate any liability on these guarantees.

 1,739  2,087 

C. Other money for which the company is contingently liable :
	 - 	Other matters  431  363 
	 - 	Provident fund
		  Based on the Honorable Supreme Court judgment dated 28 February 2019, 

relating to components of salary structure that needs to be taken into account while 
computing the contribution to provident fund under the Employee Provident Fund 
Act. Past provident fund liability is not determinable at present in view of uncertainty 
on the applicability of the judgment to the Company with respect to timing and 
the components of its compensation structure. In absence of further clarification, 
the Company has been advised to await further developments in this matter to 
reasonably assess the implications on its financial statements, if any.

Amount not  
determinable 

Amount not  
determinable 

	 -	 Inventory 
		  Certain imported inventory amounting to Rs. 336 lakhs, which has been 

detained by the Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS). As according to BIS, the said 
imported inventory doesn’t meet the standards as specified in the notification 
issued by BIS. The Company had filed an application with the BIS Authorities, for 
compounding of an alleged Offence under Section 33 of BIS Act, 2016 on 05 
May 2023. The Company received an order dated 15 June 2023 allowing the 
Compounding application, subject to payment of compounding amount of  
Rs. 3,643 lakhs, under the BIS Act 2016 and BIS Rules, 2018. As the Compounding 
amount was unfair, arbitrary and unreasonable, the Company filed a Writ Petition 
in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court, since the filing of the appeal with DG was not 
an efficacious remedy, challenging the said compounding order, and got a stay. 
As the proceedings have not yet started, the pleadings are yet to begin, hence no 
provision has been made towards compounding amount in the books, as of 31 
March 2024, since the final / exact /appropriate amount of compounding is yet to 
be determined.

 3,643 Amount not  
determinable 

Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending 
at various forums/authorities. The management does not expect these claims to succeed and accordingly, no 
provision for the contingent liability has been recognised in the financial statements.	
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Note 45 - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

On Capital account and not provided for (net of advances and CWIP)  1,297  450 
										        

Note 46 - Borrowings secured against current assets :	

Disclosure of current assets secured and filed with the banker against borrowings availed

(Rs. in lakhs)

Quarter 
Ended

Name of 
Bank

Particulars of  
securities 
provided

 FY 2023-24  FY 2022-23 

As per 
books of 
account

Reported 
to Bank

Amount of 
difference

As per 
books of 
account

Reported 
to Bank

Amount of 
difference 
[Refer note 

(a) & (b) 
below]

June Various 
Banks*

Working capital 
**

 17,896  17,896  -  13,263  13,792  529 

September Various 
Banks*

Working capital 
**

 18,617  18,617  -  13,244  13,159  (85)

December Various 
Banks*

Working capital 
**

 18,720  18,720  -  14,424  14,424  - 

March Various 
Banks*

Working capital 
**

 20,403  20,403  -  16,944  16,944  -

 		
*HDFC Bank, ICICI Bank, IDFC Bank and Kotak Bank								      
** Trade Receivables + Inventories + Unbilled Revenue/contract asset - Trade Payables	 	 	

Note for discrepancies :	 									       

a) 	 Difference was on account of reclassification of provision of expenses in financial statement for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2023 amouting to Rs. 529 Lakhs.

b) 	 Difference was on account of reclassification of contract liability in financial statement for the half year ended 
September 30, 2023 amounting to Rs. 85 Lakhs.
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Note 47- Leases: Ind AS 116

The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leasehold land, Ownership premises and Computers used in its 
operations. The Company has recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 303 lakhs (31 
March 2023: Rs. 134 lakhs) and Rs. 73 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 134 lakhs) respectively. During the year ended 
March 31, 2024, the Company had recognized interest expense on lease amounting to Rs. 14 lakhs (31 March 
2023: Rs. 15 lakhs) and depreciation on right-of-use assets amounting to Rs. 81 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 57 lakhs). 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.5% p.a.	

Right-of-use assets:										        

Additional information on the right-of-use assets by class of assets are as follows: 				 
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Gross  
carrying value

Accumulated  
depreciation  

[Refer note (a) 
below]

Net  
carrying value

As at 31 March 2024
Leasehold Land 594  19  575 
Ownership premises  114  67  47 
Computers  150  66  84 

Total  858  152  706 
As at 31 March 2023
Leasehold Land 364 7 357
Ownership premises  114 29 85
Computers  77 35 42

Total  555  71  484
 	

The following is the movement in Right-of-use assets for the year ended:					   
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year  555  543 
Addition during the year [Refer notes (b) below]  303  134 
Deductions during the year [Refer notes (c) below]  -  (122)
Gross carrying value  858  555 
Less: Accumulated depreciation [Refer notes (a) below]  (152)  (71)
Net carrying value  706  484

Lease liabilities:										        

Lease liabilities are presented in the balance sheet are as follows:					   
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Non-current lease liabilities  72  84 
Current lease liabilities  78  58 

Total  150  142
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The following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended:					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year  142  153 

Addition during the year [Refer notes (b) below]  73  134 

Deductions during the year  -  (102)

Finance cost accrued during the year [Refer notes (c) below]  14  15 

Revaluation of lease liability  1  7 

Payment of lease liabilities  (80)  (65)

Total  150  142 

Notes:	 									       

a. 	 The aggregate depreciation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under “”Depreciation and amortization 
expense”” in the statement of Profit and Loss.							     

b. 	 During the current year 2023-24 in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, there is addition of Rs 73 lakhs 
towards laptops. Further Rs. 230 lakhs towards leasehold land has been added to Right-of-use assets.	

c. 	 The accrued finance cost on lease liabilities is included under “Finance cost” in the statement of Profit and 
Loss.	

Cash flow from leases	 		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Cash payments for the principal and interest portion of lease liability within 
financing activities 

 80 65 

Short-term lease payments are not included in the measurement of lease 
liability from operating activies

 370 331 

Total  450 396
			 

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease 
liabilities is as follows:			 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Minimum lease payment

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Amount due within one year  88  69 

Amount due from one to five years  80  90 

Amount due from five years and above  -  - 

Total  168 159
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Note 48- Lease rental income

The investment properties (Office premises) are leased to tenants under operating leases. Lease income from 
operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. The aggregate amount of rent credited to statement of profit and loss account during the year is Rs. 129 
lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 126 lakhs). [Refer note 35]			 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Minimum lease payment

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Amount due within one year  133 110

Amount due from one year to two years  130 106

Amount due from two to three years  88  104 

Amount due from three to four years  57 68

Amount due from four to five years  15  41 

Amount due from five years and above  53  5 

Total  476  434

Note 49- With respect to the application for proposed Scheme of amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador 
Fontech Limited (“Transferor Company” or “ADFL”) with Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or “AWL” or 
“Company”), the meetings of the equity shareholders of AWL and ADFL, as directed by NCLT, were held on 10 
August 2023 and 30 October, 2023 respectively and the Shareholders of both the Companies approved the 
Scheme of Amalgamation by requisite majority. Both the Companies have thereafter completed the necessary 
statutory formalities and the next hearing of the amalgamation petition is scheduled to be held on 7 May 2024.

Note 50 - Employee benefits 

As per Indian Accounting Standard-19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the disclosure of Employee benefits as defined in the 
Standard are given below:			 

Brief description of the plans:			 

The Company has various schemes for employee benefits such as provident fund, superannuation and gratuity. 
In case of funded schemes, the funds are administered through trustees/ appropriate authorities. The Company’s 
defined contribution plans are superannuation, employees state insurance and provident fund as the Company 
has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company’s defined benefit plans consists of 
gratuity only. The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as per the Company’s 
policy.			 

I. 	 Defined Contribution Plan:	 		

(i) 	 Superannuation fund			 

(ii) 	 Provident fund			 

(iii) 	Employees State Insurance fund			

	 During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss*:
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	 Contribution to Defined contribution plan, recognized as expense for the year is as under:		
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Employer’s Contribution to Superannuation  49  41 
Employer’s contribution to provident fund  282  229 
Employer’s Contribution to Employees state insurance fund  5  4 

Total  336  274 

	 * included in Note 39- ‘Employee benefits expenses’

II. 	 Defined Benefit Plan :				  

	 Contribution to Gratuity fund (funded scheme):				  

	 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid 
defined benefit plan of gratuity based on the following assumptions:-				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

(i) 	 Actuarial assumptions

	 Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.60%

	 Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.20% 8.00%

	 Attrition rate

	 21 years to 44 years (per annum) 16.00% 15.00%

	 45 years and above (per annum) 3.00% 7.00%

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial 
valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as, supply and demand factors in the 
employment market.

(ii) 	Assets information:

	 The plan assets for the funded gratuity plan is administered by Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC’) as per the investment pattern 
stipulated for pension and Group Schemes fund by Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) Regulations. 

(iii) 	Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

	 Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year  723  573 

	 Current service cost  117  69 

	 Interest on defined benefit obligation  51  34 

	 Remeasurements during the period due to:

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions  36  (5)

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions  2  5 

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes  31  91 

	 Liabilities assumed/(settled)  23 

	 Benefits paid  (22)  (44)

	 Present Value of obligation at the end of the year  961  723 
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

(iv) 	Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets

	 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  59  33 

	 Interest on plan assets  2  - 

	 Remeasurements during the period due to:

	 Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets  1  - 

	 Contributions by employer  39  70 

	 Benefits paid  (18)  (44)

	 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  83  59 

(v) 	Assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

	 Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  961  723 

	 Less: Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  (83)  (59)

	 Net liability recognised  878  664 

	 Recognised under provisions [Refer note 26 and note 32]

	 Non current provisions  760  615 

	 Current provisions  118  49 

(vi) 	Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

	 Current Service Cost  117  69 

	 Interest on net defined benefit liability  49  34 

	 Net gratuity cost recognised in current year  166  103 

	 Included in note 39 ‘Employee benefits expenses’

(vii) Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

	 Remeasurements during the period due to:

	 Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from change in financial assumptions  36  (5)

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions  2  5 

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes  31  91 

	 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of Actual return on plan assets 
less interest on plan assets

 1  - 

	 Net cost recognised in other comprehensive income  70  91

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 - 6.2 years).  
Contribution expected for next one year is Rs. 1,62,91,440 (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 50,00,000).		

(viii) Sensitivity Analysis:				 

	 Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes 
in demographic assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are 
particularly sensitive to discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the 
impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period 
arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.	
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Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount  
Rate

Salary 
escalation 

rate

Discount  
Rate

Salary 
escalation 

rate

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO (3.39%) 3.54% (3.05%) 3.19%

Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.60% (3.37%) 3.22% (3.05%)

	 These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation 
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been 
no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 
analyses.				  

(ix) 	Maturity Pattern:					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Maturity Profile 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Expected benefits for year 1 168  109 

Expected benefits for year 2 68  106 

Expected benefits for year 3 72  68 

Expected benefits for year 4 76  75 

Expected benefits for year 5 155  72 

Expected benefits for year 6 82  123 

Expected benefits for year 7 62  67 

Expected benefits for year 8 69  52 

Expected benefits for year 9 64  56 

Expected benefits for year 10 and above 880  555 

	 Note:	 			 

1. 	 The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.	

III. 	Compensated absences

(i) 	 An amount of Rs. 159 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs 86 lakhs) has been recognised as an expense in the 
statement of profit and loss account and included in “Salaries, wages and bonus” under Note 39 
“Employee benefits expenses”. 	

(ii) 	 Balance sheet reconciliation				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Short term current provisions

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Liability as per actuarial valuation  462  329
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	 The liabilities are split between different categories of plan participants as follows:			 

Defined Benefit obligations and employer contributions 
 (Active members)

Gratuity  Compensated 
Absences 

As at 31 March 2024 655 655

As at 31 March 2023 584 584
				  

	 Risk Exposure - Asset Volatility	 			 

	 The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it 
underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse 
salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an 
increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature 
the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

Note 51 - Related Party Disclosure:			 

As per Ind AS 24 “Related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the 
Accounting Standard are given below:			 

(I) 	 List of related parties and relationship:			 

Relationship Name of the Persons / Company

(i) 	Holding Company: J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited

(ii) 	Fellow subsidiaries: Ador Powertron Limited (Subsidiary of J. B. Advani & Company Private 
Limited)

Ador Green Energy Private Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. Advani & Company 
Private Limited)

Ador Fontech Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. Advani & Company Private 
Limited)

Ador Multiproducts Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. Advani & Company Private 
Limited)

3D Future Technologies Private Limited (Subsidiary of Ador Fontech 
Limited)

(iii) 	Other related parties: 1908 E-Ventures Private Limited (Step down subsidiary of J. B. Advani & 
Company Private Limited)

Mack Valves India Private Limited (Common director)

Ador Digatron Private Limited

Executive Mantra Search Services Private Limited (Common director)

(iv) Key management personnel: Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - Executive Chairman

Mr. A. T. Malkani - Managing Director (Executive)

Dr. D. A. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive) 

Mr. R. A. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive)

Ms. T. H. Advani - Director (Non-executive)

Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)
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Relationship Name of the Persons / Company

Mr. P. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. R. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. V. M. Bhide - Head - HR, Admin, IA, Legal and Company Secretary

Mr. Surya Kant Sethia - Chief Financial Officer

(II) 	Transactions during the year:			 
 (Rs. in lakhs) 

Description of the nature of transactions Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Sale of Fixed assets
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  -  10 

 -  10 
Purchases of Fixed assets
 	 Ador Powertron Limited  2  1 

 2  1 
Sale of goods
	 - 	Holding Company
		   J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  234  143 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  Ador Powertron Limited*  1  - 
		  Ador Fontech Limited  315  376 

 550  519 
Purchase of goods and services received 
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  2,469  2,240 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  Ador Powertron Limited  3  26 
 		  Ador Fontech Limited  1,655  253 
	 - 	Other related party
 		  1908 E-Ventures Private Limited*  -  5 

 4,127  2,524 
Rent received 
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  32  30 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  3D Future Technologies Pvt Ltd*  1  - 
 		  Ador Fontech Limited  7  3 

 40  33 
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 (Rs. in lakhs) 
Description of the nature of transactions Year ended  

31 March 2024
Year ended  

31 March 2023
Recovery of expenses (received)
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  12  10 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  Ador Fontech Limited  3  4 

 15  14 
Reimbursement of expenses (paid)
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  11  13 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  Ador Fontech Limited*  1  - 

 12  13 
Remuneration paid
Short Term Benefit paid
	 - 	Key Management Personnel
 		  Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - Executive Chairman  185  158 
 		  Mr. A. T. Malkani - Managing Director  178  147 
 		  Mr. V. M. Bhide (Head - HR, Admin, IA, Legal and Company Secretary)  56  54 
 		  Mr. Surya Kant Sethia - Chief Financial Officer  62  55 
Post employment benefit 
	 - 	Key Management Personnel
 		  Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - Executive Chairman  38  34 
 		  Mr. A. T. Malkani - Managing Director  34  27 
 		  Mr. V. M. Bhide (Head - HR, Admin, IA, Legal & Company Secretary)  12  12 
 		  Mr. Surya kant Sethia - Chief Financial Officer  4  4 

 569  491 
Sitting fees
	 - 	Key Management Personnel
 		  Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non
		  executive)

 1  1 

 		  Mr. P. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  1  2 
 		  Mr. R. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  1  2 
 		  Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  1  1 
 		  Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  1  1 
 		  Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  1  1 

 6  8 
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 (Rs. in lakhs) 
Description of the nature of transactions Year ended  

31 March 2024
Year ended  

31 March 2023
Rent Deposit Received
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited*  2  1 
	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries
 		  Ador Fontech Limited  6  1 

 8  2 
Dividend paid
	 - 	Holding Company
 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  1,190  850 

 1,190  850 
Commission
	 - 	Key Management Personnel
 		  Mr. R. A. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Ms. T. H. Advani - Director (Non-executive)  10  10 
		  Mr. P. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Mr. R. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non
		  executive)

 10  10 

 		  Dr. D. A. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive)  10  10 
 		  Mr. A. T. Malkani - Managing Director  10  10 
 		  Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal (Executive Chairman)  10  10 
 		  Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  9 
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(III) 	Amount outstanding at the year end:

 (Rs. in lakhs) 

Description of the nature of transactions Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Trade receivables

	 - 	Holding Company

 		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  40  32 

	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries

 		  Ador Fontech Limited*  22  - 

 62  32 
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 (Rs. in lakhs) 

Description of the nature of transactions Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Rent deposit payable

	 - 	Holding Company

		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  17  15 

	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries

 		  Ador Fontech Limited  6  1 

 23  16 

Trade payables

	 - 	Holding Company

		  J. B. Advani & Company Private Limited  247  315 

	 - 	Fellow subsidiaries

 		  Ador Fontech Limited*  17  - 

 264  315 

Other payable (Commission payable)

 	 Mr. R. A. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Ms. T. H. Advani - Director (Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Mr. P. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 

	 Mr. R. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  10 

 	 Mr. D. A. Lalvani (Whole Time Director)  10  10 

 	 Mr. A. T. Malkani - Managing Director  10  10 

 	 Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal (Executive Chairman)  10  10 

 	 Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  10  9 

 110  109 

* Amounts below Rs 0.50 lakh have been rounded off.

Notes:			 

1. 	 All the above transactions with related parties are net of Goods and Service Tax.

2. 	 The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free. The settlement for these 
balances occurs through payment. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related 
party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has not recorded any 
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2023: Nil). This assessment 
is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market 
in which the related party operates			 



19571st Annual Report 2023-24

FINANCIALS
Corporate PROFILE Statutory Report

Note 52 - Segment reporting	 					   

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) examines the Company’s performance and has 
identified three reportable segments of its business:

(i) 	 Consumables

(ii) 	 Equipment and automation

(iii) 	Flares & Process Equipment Division

The above operating segments have been identified considering:

(i) 	 The internal financial reporting systems

(ii) 	 The nature of the products/ process

(iii)	 The organisation structure as well as differential risks and returns of these segments.		

Types of products and services in each business segment:

Business Segment

a) 	 Consumables Electrodes, wires, agency items related to consumables from Silvassa, 
Raipur and Chennai plant.

b) 	 Equipment and automation Equipment, spares, cutting products and agency items related to 
equipment, cutting products etc. from Chinchwad plant.

c) 	 Flares & Process Equipment Flares & Process Equipment Division (FPED) is a multi-disciplined SBU that 
provides services like design, manufacture, erection & commissioning, 
mechanical, electrical and instrumentation of process packages, process 
equipment and flare system & components from Chinchwad plant.

Revenue and expenses have been accounted on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of 
the segment. Expenses, which related to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a 
reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocable Income” and “Unallocable Expenses” respectively. 
Assets and Liabilities, which related to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable 
basis, have been included under “Unallocable Assets / Liabilities”. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for at 
competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods.					   
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A) 	 Business segment	 					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023

External Inter 
Segment

Total External Inter 
Segment

Total

1.	Segment revenue

	 Consumables  67,877  (97)  67,780  61,490  (41)  61,449 

	 Equipment and automation  17,521  (390)  17,131  11,535  (31)  11,504 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  3,472  -  3,472  4,779  (56)  4,723 

	 Total revenue  88,870  (487)  88,383  77,804  (128)  77,676 

2. Segment result

	 (a) Segment result before exceptional items

	 Consumables  10,668  8,876 

	 Equipment and automation  802  772 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  (824)  486 

	 Unallocable  (1,767)  (1,961)

 8,879  8,173 

	 (b) Exceptional items (net) profit / (loss)

	 Consumables  -  (146)

	 Equipment and automation  -  - 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  -  - 

	 Unallocable  -  66 

 -  (80)

	 (c) Segment result after exceptional items

	 Consumables  10,668  8,730 

	 Equipment and automation  802  772 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  (824)  486 

	 Unallocable  (1,767)  (1,895)

	 Total Segment result  8,879  8,093 

	 Interest and finance charges (unallocable)  (324)  (182)

	 Profit / (Loss)before tax  8,555  7,911 

	 Tax (expenses) /credit  (2,236)  (1,982)

	 Net profit /(loss)after tax  6,319  5,929 

3. Capital expenditure

	 Consumables  563  1,227 

	 Equipment and automation  571  249 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  288  391 

	 Unallocated  92  116 

	 Total capital expenditure  1,514  1,983 
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023

External Inter 
Segment

Total External Inter 
Segment

Total

4. Depreciation and amortisation

	 Consumables  736  656 

	 Equipment and automation  297  254 

	 Flares & Process Equipment Division  100  69 

	 Unallocated  209  182 

	 Total depreciation and amortisation 1,342  1,161

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Other information

Segment assets

Consumables  27,164  25,184 

Equipment and automation  11,716  9,925 

Flares & Process Equipment Division  6,838  4,435 

Assets classified as held for sale (unallocable)  25  80 

Unallocated  6,318  5,544 

Total assets  52,061  45,168 

Segment liabilities

Consumables  6,053  5,375 

Equipment and automation  2,286  2,677 

Flares & Process Equipment Division  2,409  2,016 

Unallocated  5,075  2,749 

Total liabilities  15,823  12,817 

Capital employed

Consumables  21,111  19,809 

Equipment and automation  9,430  7,248 

Flares & Process Equipment Division  4,429  2,419 

Unallocated  1,268  2,875 

Total capital employed  36,238  32,351
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B) Geographical segment		

Revenue from external customers:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Within India  76,229  70,547 

Outside India  12,154  7,129 

Total  88,383  77,676

Domestic Segment includes sales and services rendered to customers in India.	

Overseas Segment includes sales and services rendered to customers located outside in India.		

Non-current assets:		

The following are the details of the carrying amount of non current assets, which do not include deferred tax 
assets, income tax assets, financial assets and investments, of the geographical area in which the assets are 
located:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Within India  17,106  14,053 

Outside India  70  107 

Total  17,176  14,160 

C) 	Other disclosures

1. 	 The Company is currently focused on three business segments : Consumables, Equipment and Automation, 
and Flares & Process Equipment Division. The Company’s organisational structure and governance processes 
are designed to support effective management of multiple businesses while retaining focus on each one of 
them.	

2. 	 The Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the 
segment and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

3.	 The geographical information considered for disclosure are :
(i) 	 Sales within India
(ii) 	 Sales outside India

4. 	 No single external customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s revenue from operations for the year 
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.		
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Note 53 - Fair value measurements

Financial assets and liabilities	 					   
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:						    
			 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Fair value  
through 

 profit or loss

Amortised 
cost

Fair value  
through 

 profit or loss

Amortised 
cost

Financial Assets - Non-current

Investments  -  320  -  269 

Loans  -  -  -  22 

Other non-current financial assets  -  673  -  767 

Financial Assets - Current

Investments  2,005  -  1,759  - 

Trade receivables  -  15,045  -  12,517 

Cash and cash equivalents  -  183  -  595 

Other bank balances  -  91  -  94 

Loans  -  176  -  38 

Other current financial assets  -  113  -  50 

Financial Liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings  -  60  -  73 

Lease liabilities  -  72  -  84 

Other non-current financial liabilities  -  26  -  16 

Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings  -  4,191  -  1,513 

Lease liabilities  78  58 

Trade payables  -  6,994  -  7,304 

Other financial liabilities  -  1,822  -  1,350 
		
All the above amounts are net of provisions for impairments.						    

I. 	 Fair value hierarchy						    

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values 
of the financial instruments that are 

(a) 	recognised and measured at fair value and, 

(b) 	measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 

	 To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company 
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.						    
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	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listed 
equity instruments that have quoted market price.						    

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded 
bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use 
of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.		

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification 
asset included in level 3.						    

II. 	 Valuation techniques used to determine fair value						   

	 The fair values for Security deposits, loan to employees and deposits are based on discounted cash flows 
using a discount rate determined considering the borrowing rate charged by the bank on the loan facility 
availed.						    

III. 	Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Fair value hierarchy- recurring fair value 
measurement): 						    

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Investment in 
Mutual funds

Investment in 
Bonds

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Level 1  1,975  30  2,005 

As at 31 March 2023

Level 1  1,729  30  1,759
 	

IV. 	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are 
disclosed	 					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Financial assets - Non-current

Investments  348  320  287  269 

Loans  -  -  22  22 

Other financial assets  673  673  767  767 

Financial Assets - Current

Trade receivables  15,045  15,045  12,517  12,517 

Cash and cash equivalents  183  183  595  595 

Other bank balances  91  91  94  94 

Loans  176  176  38  38 

Other current financial assets  113  113  50  50 
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Financial liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings  60  60  73  73 

Lease liabilities  72  72  84  84 

Other non-current financial liabilities  26  26  16  16 

Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings  4,191  4,191  1,513  1,513 

Lease liabilities  78  78  58  58 

Trade payables  6,994  6,994  7,304  7,304 

Other financial liabilities  1,822  1,822  1,350  1,350 
		

During the years mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

The fair values computed above for assets measured at amortised cost are based on discounted cash flows 
using a current borrowing rate. Further, the management has assessed that fair value of financial instruments 
approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Note 54- Financial risk management

The company is exposed primarily to credit quality, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and liquidity 
management which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities. The Company has a 
risk management policy which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk management 
policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The focus of the management is to assess the unpredictability of the 
financial environment and to mitigate potential adverse effect on the financial performance of the Company.

The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds investments in mutual funds 
and bonds.

A) 	 Credit risk						    

	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 
contractual terms and obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit 
limits and credit worthiness of the customer on continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after 
obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit 
risk principally consist of trade receivables, loans, cash and bank balances and bank deposits.	

	 To manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of advance payment or credit period upto 30 to 120 
days to customers based on their credit profile. In case of foreign receivables, majority of the sales are made 
either against advance payments or by way of letter of credit. The credit limit policy is established considering 
the current economic trends of the industry in which the company is operating.

	 Also, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk of non-
recoverability of dues and provision for credit impairment is recognised accordingly.

	 Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly 
with government agencies.						    
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	 The table below provides details regarding past dues receivables as at each reporting date:		

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Not 
due

0-12 
months

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

6,679 6,984 213 863 225 14,964

Expected credit loss - trade receivables 
(Un-disputed)

- 69 43 772 225 1,109

Expected credit loss - trade receivables (%) 0 1 20 89 100 7

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Disputed)

- - - 2,358 258 2,616

Expected credit loss - trade receivables - - - 1,297 129 1,426

Expected credit loss - trade receivables (%) 100 100 100 55 50 55

Carrying amount of trade receivables 
(net of impairment)

6,679 6,915 170 1,152 129 15,045

As at 31 March 2023

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

6,238 4,746 932 408 261 12,585

Expected credit loss - trade receivables 
(Un-disputed)

- 176 599 222 261 1,258

Expected credit loss - trade receivables (%) 0 4 64 54 100 10

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Disputed)

- - 2,358 - 258 2,616

Expected credit loss - trade receivables - - 1,297 - 129 1,426

Expected credit loss - trade receivables (%) 100 100 55 0 50 55

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net 
of impairment)

6,238 4,570 1,394 186 129 12,517

B) 	 Liquidity risk	 					   

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of 
liquidity and to ensure that funds are available for use as per requirement. The liquidity risk principally arises 
from obligations on account of following financial liabilities viz. borrowings, trade payables and other financial 
liabilities.

	 The Company’s corporate finance department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement 
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected 
cash flows.
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	 The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment at 
each reporting date is :						    
As at 31 March 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Less than 

1 year
1 - 2 years 2 -5 years More than 

5 years
Total

Financial Liabilities - Non-current
Borrowings - 19 45 - 64
Lease liabilities - 45 35 - 80
Other non-current financial liabilities - 1 32 - 33
Financial Liabilities - Current
Borrowings 4,191 - - - 4,191
Lease liabilities 88 - - - 88
Trade payables 6,994 - - - 6,994
Other current financial liabilities 1,822 - - - 1,822

Total 13,095 66 112 - 13,273

As at 31 March 2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 years 2 -5 years More than 
5 years

Total

Financial Liabilities - Non-current
Borrowings - 19 56 9 84
Lease liabilities - 66 24 - 90
Other non-current financial liabilities - 3 25 - 28
Financial Liabilities - Current
Borrowings 1,513 - - - 1,513
Lease liabilities 58 - - - 58
Trade payables 7,304 - - - 7,304
Other current financial liabilities 1,350 - - - 1,350

Total 10,225 88 105 9 10,428

C) 	Market risk	 					   

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and 
price risk. The company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency risk and price 
risk.						   

(i) 	 Foreign currency risk	 					   

	 The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables and bank balances 
which are held in USD, AED, KWD and EUR. The fluctuation in the exchange rate of INR relative to USD, AED, 
KWD and EUR may have a material impact on the Company’s assets and liabilities.

	 In respect of the foreign currency transactions, the Company believes some of the exposures which 
is kept open will be offsetted by the corresponding receivables and payables (in the nature of natural 
hedge). For the remaining unhedged net outstanding amount, the Company believes it will not have 
material impact on its financial performance/position.	
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	 The Company’s exposure to unhedged foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as under:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
USD AED KWD EUR Total

Financial assets
Trade receivables 3,746 - 1,198 - 4,944
Bank balances 68 18 - - 86
Total exposure to foreign currency 
risk (assets)

3,814 18 1,198 - 5,030

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 279 - 1,198 23 1,500
Lease liabilities - 52 - - 52
Total exposure to foreign 
currency risk (liabilities)

279 52 1,198 23 1,552

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023

USD AED KWD EUR Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables 1,783 - 1,198 - 2,981
Bank balances 129 14 - - 143
Total exposure to foreign currency 
risk (assets)

1,912 14 1,198 - 3,124

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 170 - 1,198 22 1,390
Lease liabilities - 90 - - 90
Total exposure to foreign currency 
risk (liabilities)

170 90 1,198 22 1,480

						    

	 Sensitivity Analysis						    

	 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in USD, EUR, AED and KWD with all other variables held 
constant. The below impact on the Company’s profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of 
unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance sheet date:			 
			 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Currencies 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Effect 
on Profit 

before tax

Effect on 
Pre-tax 
equity

Effect 
on Profit 

before tax

Effect on 
Pre-tax 
equity

5 % appreciation 174 174 82 (82)

5 % depreciation (174) (174) (82) 82
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(ii) 	Price Risk						    

	 The Company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund and bonds classified in the 
balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss.	

	 To manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual funds 
and bonds after considering the risk and return profile of the said investments i.e. the debt profile of 
the investments indicates that the amount has been invested in creditworthy instruments and equity 
investment is made after considering the performance of the stock.

	 Sensitivity Analysis						    
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Effect 

on Profit 
before tax

Effect on 
Pre-tax 
equity

Effect 
on Profit 

before tax

Effect on 
Pre-tax 
equity

Impact on profit before tax for 5% increase in 
NAV/ Price

100 100 88 88

Impact on profit before tax for 5% decrease in 
NAV/ Price

(100) (100) (88) (88)

Note 55 - Capital Management	

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to

•	 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns to 
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, and

•	 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders.

The Company monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt includes 
interest bearing loans. Total equity comprises of Equity share capital, General reserve, Capital redemption reserve 
and Retained earnings.		

A. The capital composition is as follows:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

(a) Net debt [Refer note (61)] 4,231 1,139
(b) Equity 36,238 32,351
(c) Gearing ratio (a/b) 0.12 0.04

B. Dividends
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Dividend
Interim Dividend declared - Rs. 18.5 per share for each fully paid up 
share for 31 March 2024 (Final Dividend - 31 March 2023 - Rs. 17.5 
per share for each fully paid share)

2,516 2,380
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Note 56 - Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Net Profit after tax for the year (Rs. in lakhs) 6,319 5,929

Profit attributable to equity share holders (Rs. in lakhs) 6,319 5,929

Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,35,98,467 1,35,98,467

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 46.46 43.60

Face Value per Share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
			 

Note 57 - Assets Pledged as security:

The carrying amounts of Assets Pledged as security for current borrowings are:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Current Assets

Financial Assets

Investments 2,005 1,759

Trade Receivables 15,045 12,517

Cash and cash equivalents 183 595

Other bank balances 91 94

Loans 176 38

Other financial assets 113 50

Non Financial Assets

Inventories 12,238 11,621

Other current assets 2,380 1,617

Total Current Assets Pledged as security 32,231 28,291

Non Current Assets

Plant and Machinery 4,510 4,408

Land and building at Silvassa plant 1,386 1,468

Land and building at Chinchwad plant 1,725 -

Land and building at Chennai plant - 353

Other moveable fixed assets 1,312 1,285

Total Non-Current Assets Pledged as security 8,933 7,514

Total Assets Pledged as security 41,164 35,805

Note 58 - Revenue expenditure incurred during the year on research and development amounts to Rs. 660 lakhs 
(31 March 2023: Rs. 441 lakhs) (including depreciation Rs. 30 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 29 lakhs) and capital 
expenditure thereof amounts to Rs. 109 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 43 lakhs).
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Note 59	 		

(i) 	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	 	 	

(ii) 	 No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the 
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 60- Revenue from contracts with customers: Ind AS 115

The Company is engaged in providing welding Products Technologies and Services, customized solutions for  
multi-disciplinary  projects and contracts related to refineries, oil and gas, petrochemicals, fertilizers, steel plants, 
pharma, water and other chemical process industries. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally 
on terms of 30 to 120 days.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

1. 	 Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer.

2. 	 Identification of the performance obligations in the contract.

3. 	 Determination of the transaction price.

4. 	 Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

5. 	 Recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.					   
	

a) 	 Disaggregated revenue information

	 The Company has three reportable segments of its business :

	 (i)   Consumables

	 (ii)  Equipment and automation

	 (iii) Flares & Process Equipment

	 The Company’s revenue disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition for the year ended 31 March 
2024 and 31 March 2023 are as follows:	 					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Sr. 
No

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

1 Goods and services transferred at a point in time

(i) Consumables  67,780  61,451 

(ii) Equipment and automation  17,131  11,503 

2 Goods and services transferred over time

(iii) Flares & Process Equipment  3,472  4,722 

Total  88,383  77,676
 



208

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

b)	 (i) Contract balances information						    

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Trade 
receivables

Contract 
Assets  

(Refer note 
(ii) below)

Contract 
Liabilities 

 (Refer note 
(ii) below)

Balance as at 1 April 2022  9,315  125  805 

Net Increase/(decrease)  3,202  (11)  (275)

Balance as at 1 April 2023  12,517  114  530 

Net Increase/(decrease)  2,528  -    (84)

Balance as at 31 March 2024  15,045  114  446
 

(ii) 	Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as 
follows:	 					   

1. 	 The significant changes in contract Assets includes contracts are billed during the year for an amount 
of Rs. Nil lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 11 lakhs). 						   

2. 	 The significant changes in contract liabilities includes customer and distributors advance during the 
year decreased by Rs. 84 lakhs (31 March 2023 increased by Rs. 275 lakhs).	

(iii) 	Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted 
price as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 as follows:	 				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Revenue as per contracted price  88,570  77,875 

Adjustments:

Sales return  (187)  (199)

Revenue from contract with customers  88,383  77,676 

c) 	 Performance obligations	 					   

	 The following aggregated amounts of transaction prices relate to the performance obligations from existing 
contracts that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 as follows:	
					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

Revenue expected to be recognised 12,317 12,489
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Note 61- Net debt reconciliation
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 183 595
Borrowings (4,251) (1,586)
Lease liability (150) (142)
Interest Payable (13) (6)
Net debt (4,231) (1,139)

					   

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Cash 
and cash 

equivalents

Borrowings Lease 
liability

Interest 
Payable

Total

Net debt as at 1 April 2022 661 (68) (153) - 440

Cash flows (66) - - - (66)

Repayment of borrowing - 10 - - 10

Proceeds from borrowing - (1,528) - - (1,528)

Non cash movement : Acquisitions/
disposals/revaluation

- - (39) - (39)

Leases - - 50 - 50

Finance costs recognised - - (15) (226) (241)

Finance costs paid - - 15 220 235

Net debt as at 1 April 2023 595 (1,586) (142) (6) (1,139)

Cash flows (412) - - - (412)

Repayment of borrowing - - - - -

Proceeds from borrowing - (2,665) - - (2,665)

Non cash movement : Acquisitions/
disposals/revaluation

- - (74) - (74)

Leases - - 66 - 66

Finance costs recognised - - (14) (402) (416)

Finance costs paid - - 14 395 409

Net debt as at 31 March 2024 183 (4,251) (150) (13) (4,231)
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Note 62- Exceptional items :	 				  

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

1. 	 Impairment in the value of the wire manufacturing facility-

	 During the previous year, the Company had provided Rs. 146 lakhs 
towards impairment in the carrying value of one of the manufacturing 
facility of wires based on order from potential buyer and it was sold in 
current year

- (146)

2. 	 Profit on sale of Property - 66

	 During the previous year, the Company has sold partly property 
situated at Kochi and the profit on sale has been recognised as an 
exceptional item.

Total - (80)

Note 63- Corporate Social Responsibility :

The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required under Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is required to spend Rs. 94.96 lakhs as per Section 135(5). However, the 
Company has spent Rs. 95.18 lakhs on the activities mentioned in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Company had spent Rs. 0.13 lakh excess in the previous financial year and hence eligible for set off, against next 
financial year obligation.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2023-24:	

Where the company covered under section 135 of the companies act, the following shall be disclosed with 
regard to CSR activities:				 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2024

Year ended  
31 March 2023

(i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 95 63

(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 95 63

(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year - -

(iv) Total of previous years shortfall - -

(v) Reason for shortfall NA NA
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(vi) Nature of amount spent during financial year 2023-24 is detailed below:-				  
(Rs. in lakhs)

CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in which project is covered Projects or programs Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Additional salary to school 
teachers at Advani Oerlikon 
Higher Secondary School, 
Birgaon, Raipur

6

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Supporting people affected 
/ displaced due to Biparjoy 
Cyclone

1

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Providing financial 
assistance to Anganwadi 
Workers at Silvassa

1

Education, Women 
Empowerment,  
Skill Development & 
Healthcare

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Contribution made to the 
Trusts / NGOs through Ador 
Foundation

41

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Refurbishment of Girls 
Washroom at Advani 
Oerlikon Higher Secondary 
School, Birgaon, Raipur

32

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Education to underprivileged 
children

1

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Sponsoring education 
expenses of 10 tribal 
students

2

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Sponsoring annual 
educational expenses of 10 
students. Education support 
consists of school fees, 
tuition fees, school bags and 
stationery

1

Livelihood 
Enhancement 
Project

Promoting Health Care Including 
Preventive Health Care

Contributing to the 
treatment of  
2 underprivileged children, 
suffering from deadly 
disease

1

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Sponsoring annual 
educational expenses of 6 
underprivileged girl students

1
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(Rs. in lakhs)
CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in which project is covered Projects or programs Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

Livelihood 
Enhancement 
Project

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Working for well-being of 
special & disabled children

2

Livelihood 
Enhancement 
Project

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Working towards supporting 
women who stays in slums 
areas like providing soft skill 
training & placements

2

Promoting 
Education

Promoting education for poor 
& needy

Sponsoring infrastructural 
development at a rural 
school in Satara

1

Livelihood 
Enhancement 
Project

Contribution to relief funds for socio 
economic development, relief and 
welfare of the socially backward 
class/ unprivileged

Providing pressure cookers 
to the families of Anganwadi 
Workers

4

Livelihood 
Enhancement 
Project

Promoting Health Care Including 
Preventive Health Care

Extending financial 
assistance for providing 
mental health services at 
bare minimum / marginal 
cost to the low income 
group people

2

Total 95

Note :				  

Amount spent during the year on

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

i) Construction / Acquisition of any assets - -

ii) Purpose other than (i) above 95 63

Total 95 63
				  

(vii) 	Details of related party transactions: 

	 During the current year, Company has not entered into any related party transaction with respect to CSR 
expenditure. 

(viii) During the year, the Company was not required to make any provision, with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation.				  
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Note 65 - The Company has registered all charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies during current year 
and previous year.

Note 66 - During the current year and previous year, the Company has not entered into any transactions with 
companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note 67 - The Board has declared/approved an interim dividend for the financial year 2023-24 @ Rs18.5 per 
share, i.e. 185% of the face value of Rs.10 each.

Note 68 - The Company evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date to 30 April 2024, the date 
at which the financial statement were available to be issued and determined that there are no item to report.

Note 69 - The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the 
proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment 
Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall 
use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, 
creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes 
were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company as part of its internal review pursuant to MCA notification on audit trail commenced reviewing audit 
trail and its related requirements prior to commencement of current financial year. During the year, the Company 
was assured by its accounting software provider that its accounting software is compliant with MCA notification 
on audit trail, which was further substantiated by related documentation shared by the accounting software 
provider. However, to ensure compliance, the Company commenced its internal review and identified that audit 
trail (edit logs) were getting purged after 30 days. Accordingly, the Company immediately took corrective action 
with effect from June 2024 and related audit trail (edit logs) were retained after 24 June 2023.

Note 70	

i) 	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any Benami property.	

ii) 	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

iii) 	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

iv) 	 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

v) 	 The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the 
year.

vi) 	 The Company does not have any loan or advance in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, 
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other 
person, that are:

(a) repayable on demand; or

(b) without specifying the any terms or period of repayment.
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Note 71 - Amounts below Rs 0.50 lakh have been rounded off.

Note 72 - The figures of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. The impact 
of restatements/ regroupings in the previous year figures are not material to Financial Statements.	

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - HR, Admin, IA, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024
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NOTES



In the fiscal year 2023-24, Ador Welding Training Division has 
achieved significant milestones, solidifying its position in 
welding education and certification. Key achievements 
include accreditation by the International Institute of Welding, 
as an Approved Training Body, enabling the division to offer the 
prestigious International Welders Diploma.

Strategic collaborations were formed, such as an MoU with the 
Hindalco School of Excellence for enhancing trainer skills and 
standardizing trainee certification. The division supported 
Industrial Training Institutes (ITIs) with free, industry-demand-
based welding training, enhancing student placement 
opportunities. Training was provided across various sectors 

including metals, automotive, construction, and energy.
A notable CSR initiative with Enpro Industries saw the successful 
training of 20 candidates, contributing to community 
development.

Additionally, specialized training programs were conducted 
for Bhutan Hydropower Services Limited. Overall, 892 
candidates were trained through various modes, including in-
house, onsite, and online training, facilitating their international 
work opportunities. This year marked a landmark for Ador 
Welding Training Division with its commitment to high standards 
and impactful training programs, thanks to the support of 
partners, trainees, and stakeholders.

WELDING TRAINING DIVISION OF ADOR



www.adorwelding.com

Registered Office: Ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai 400 001-16, 
Maharashtra, India.

+91 22 6623 9300 investorservices@adorians.com
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